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““
Living The 
Church’s Social 
Mission
Inspire every Catholic to live out the Church’s social teaching

In the sixth year since its inception, Caritas Singapore 
has made great strides, not least of which is the 

continuing success of its bi-yearly Social Mission 
Conferences. Caritas Singapore fronts the good 
work all Catholics are extolled to perform - that of 
helping the poor and creating a better society for all 
- the crux of which lies at the heart of our Catholic 
Social Teaching, thus allowing us to actively live out 
the Church’s social mission. 

This call and challenge to “charity” and “justice” is 
deeply rooted in Scripture, for in Matthew 25:40, we 
are reminded that “as you did it to one of the least 
of these my brothers, you did it to me”.

Indeed, our Catholic Social Teaching dictates that 
we all have a role to play – fellow Catholics, social 
workers, volunteers and religious alike. We are 
all jointly responsible for the vulnerable in our 
community.

With this in mind, Caritas Singapore’s Social Mission 
Conference 2012 strived to break new ground with its 
strategy of “empowering the needy” and “building 
capacity” – enabling the poor to help themselves. 
This approach brings the  Church’s social mission to 
a new level. 

Taking the form of the Church’s own interpretation 
of  the “National Conversation”,  it tackled head-
on the urgent issues faced by our country in recent 
times. Concerns such as immigration, overcrowding, 

widening income gap, inflation and unemployment 
have all brought new challenges into sharp relief.

In helping the poor break out of their poverty cycle by 
creating opportunities for them to help themselves, 
Caritas Singapore aspires to fulfil its larger role of 
affirming the dignity and self-respect of the under-
privileged whereas previously the emphasis had been 
to seeing to their immediate needs.    

The plight of the marginalised in our society is severe 
– single mothers, youths-at-risk, low-wage workers, 
people with disabilities and ex-offenders all face 
cruel stereotyping and discrimination in our society. 

It is towards this end that Caritas Singapore’s vision to 
build a one-stop service centre has come to fruition.  
The Agape Village has, as its goal, that of providing 
holistic, integrated services to help the poor and 
disadvantaged escape from the poverty cycle.

The wisdom of the Catholic faith alludes to the way 
of love in the Compendium of the Social Doctrine 
of the Church (207), which says “no legislation, 
no system of rules or negotiation will ever succeed 
in persuading men and peoples to live in unity, 
brotherhood and peace; no line of reasoning will ever 
be able to surpass the appeal of love. Only love, in 
its quality as “form of the virtues”, can animate and 
shape social interaction, moving it towards peace in 
the context of a world that is ever more complex.” 

We must fully embrace this social charity as a 
force within us to move and inspire new ways of 
approaching the problems of the world today.  We 
must use the resources and graces God has granted us 
to renew and heal our social fabric and organisations 
towards His greater glory in His kingdom here on 
earth.

May all the good that God intends for our world be 
the good that we are challenged to perform. 

God bless you all!

Archbishop Nicholas Chia, DD
Patron, Caritas Singapore 
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At the first Olympic Stadium in Athens, there is a 
banner which says:

It reminds me of a familiar theme used in Catholic 
circles when we talk about our faith:  that we are on 
a “journey”.  A journey of love, a journey of hope, a 
journey which may lead us anywhere; so long as we 
are with The Lord.

Caritas Singapore was formed six years ago to bring 
our Catholic social mission groups together to serve 
the poor and disadvantaged in Singapore and the 
region better.  To do this, we had to understand the 
social realities in Singapore, and reflect on what the 
role of the Church in a changing world was.

Where are we on a journey today?

There have been some positive signs.

We are now a grouping of 23 Catholic social mission 
groups, serving children-at-risk, families-at-risk, 
the financially poor, the mentally and physically 
challenged, prisoners, HIV/AIDS persons, foreign 
domestic workers, and so on. With the help of 
CHARIS, we also serve our less advantaged brothers 
and sisters in the Philippines, Myanmar, Indonesia 
and other countries.  Together, we serve more than 
50,000 beneficiaries, regardless of race or religion.

Catholic Social Teaching is the foundation of our 
work; the primary principle being the dignity of the 
human person. Through our workshops, publications 
and social mission conferences, and using the 
methodology of the Pastoral Cycle or Review of Life, 
we have stressed the need for our affiliate member 

“

“OUR WANDERING IS NOT FINISHED … organisations to base their work on our faith. We 
search for root causes of problems and work in 
partnership with the poor to give them dignity and 
get them out of the poverty or negative cycle.

We conduct leadership forums, retreats and strategic 
planning sessions with our member organisations.  
Grants have been doubled for many member 
organisations, and assistance rendered to more 
groups. We aim for better governance. An Advocacy 
desk has also been set up, to see how we can bring 
about change for a better world.

Now the bad news.

The bad news is that the social realities in Singapore 
are not getting better. The gap between the rich and 
the poor is widening, many people are struggling 
to make ends meet, families are at risk, addiction 
is on the rise, and our migrant workers face many 
challenges. There are clear signs that people are 
becoming more materialistic and selfish. At one SG 
Conversation which I attended recently, the lack of 
values was a chief concern.

In the face of all these challenges, how can we, as 
a Church, be the “salt of the earth”? How can we 
bring the “good news to the poor”?

Small as we are, we believe that the Church can be 
a positive force for change if we put our hearts and 
mind to it. And, of course, our faith!

As a step in this direction, Caritas Singapore has 
embarked on a project to build Agape Village, a 
place where the poor and disadvantaged can come, 
be treated with dignity and respect and be given a 
helping hand to get out of the poverty or negative 
cycle (see story on pages 6-7). The difference which 
we hope to provide at this village is integrated, 
holistic care from all our 23 Catholic social mission 
groups.

The Agape Village is intended to be the sign of the 
Catholic Church’s commitment to the poor. For this 
project to work, we will need the support of the 
Catholic community. We would like every Catholic, if 
possible, to be involved. If you are able to volunteer 
your time or services, please contact us. If you are 
able to support us financially, it will be wonderful 
(and much needed). But more importantly, we need 
everybody’s prayers.

The Agape Village and our other work at Caritas 
Singapore are small steps. Our wandering is not 
finished.  Our journey of faith, love and hope towards 
the least of our brothers and sisters has just begun. 
We invite all of you to join us on this journey.

George Lim
Chairman, Caritas Singapore
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CARITAS SINGAPORE & REVIEW OF FY2012

Caritas Singapore is the social and charitable arm 
of the Catholic Archdiocese of Singapore. We 

provide coordination, direction and leadership to 23 
Catholic social mission groups carrying out work for 
the poor and the community. 

Our social mission groups serve the poor, families-at-
risk, prisoners, people living with HIV/AIDS, migrant 
workers, children and youths-at-risk, and those who 
are physically and mentally challenged. We serve 
everyone in need, regardless of race or religion.  

Caritas is a Latin word meaning love and charity. 

The work of Caritas Singapore and our member 
organisations for the poor and disadvantaged is 
inspired by the call of Christ to “love one another as 
He had loved us”. 

Caritas Singapore is a member of Caritas 
Internationalis, a global confederation of 165 
national members. Headquartered at the Vatican 
City, Caritas Internationalis has representatives at 
the United Nations in New York and Geneva. Caritas 
Internationalis provides relief, development and 
social services to 24 million people in more than 200 
countries and territories worldwide.

Strategic Framework

Caritas Singapore formulated its Strategic Framework 
at our Board Retreat in February 2011 to set out 

our core priorities until 2014. These priorities are 
encapsulated in four main objectives.
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Our Activities at a Glance

29 September 2012 ~ 
3rd Leaders’ Forum

10 March  2012 ~ 
Catholic Social Teaching for Young Adults

1 September 2012 ~
The Social Mission Conference 2012 -
“Partnering the Poor, Living Our Faith”

17 July 2012 ~ 
5th CBN Golf for Charity 2012

18 May 2012 ~
Training Workshop for SSVP Volunteers

19 May 2012 ~
Cycle and Psyche of Poverty Workshop

4-6 May 2012 ~ Leaders’ Retreat

14 January 2012 ~
2nd Leaders’ Forum

October 2011 ~
A Call to Social Mission
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS 

Financials FY 2012 ($) FY 2011 ($)

Donations 6,821,015   7,543,461

Sponsorships   233,072 288,572

Others 24,799   49,722

Total Income (Incoming Resources) 7,078,886 7,881,755

Costs of Charitable Activities 4,782,446 5,764,831

Fundraising and Sponsorship Costs 210,607 221,830

Governance Costs 181,252  200,536

Total Expenditure (Resources Expended) 5,174,305   6,187,197

Net Income (Incoming Resources) 1,904,581 1,694,558

Ratios  FY2012 ($) FY 2011 ($)

Total Funds Raised (Donations and Sponsorships)   7,054,087 7,832,033

Fundraising and Sponsorship Costs   210,607   221,830

Fundraising Ratio1   3.0% 2.8%

Grants Expenditure   4,294,100   5,255,877

Other Charitable Expenses  488,346   508,954

Programme Ratio2  92% 93%

Reserves3 13,257,247 11,352,667

Reserves Ratio4  2.67 years   1.90 years

1 Measures fundraising efficiency.  Computed based on the formula: Fundraising and Sponsorship Costs ÷ Total Funds Raised.

2 Measures funds deployed on charity programmes versus fundraising and overheads.  Computed based on the formula: Expenses 
Spent on Charitable Programmes (including Grants) ÷ Total Expenditure.

3 Caritas Singapore has made a commitment of $3.9 million as advance rental of 30 years for 55 Waterloo Street, payable to the 
Archdiocese in early 2013. After payment, we will have a reserve of $9.3 million, which amounts to a  reserves ratio of 1.88 years.

4 Measures number of years of reserve. Computed based on the formula: Reserves ÷ Total Expenditure (excluding Fundraising and 
Sponsorship Costs).
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AGAPE VILLAGE, 
a new model for partnering the poor in Singapore

The poor among us

In Singapore, there is 

no national poverty 

line.  The very thought of 

poor people in Singapore 

seems at odds with the 

country’s reputation as 

a global financial and 

transportation hub and according to the Wealth Report 

2012 by Knight Frank and Citi Private Bank, the richest 

country in the world.

Yet, we know that poverty in Singapore is real, worsened 

by a widening income gap.  Social workers, voluntary 

welfare organisations and community leaders attest to the 

growing numbers who need help.  

In a 2011 report published by the Department of Statistics, 

the average monthly income for households in the 

bottom 10th percentile, where at least one member was 

employed, was below $1,600.  That of those in the 11th 

to 20th percentile was just over $3,000.

These households are considered low-income families 

and typically receive some form of financial assistance 

from the government.  According to the Ministry of 

Social and Family Development (MSF), it provides help to 

those that ‘’typically cover the bottom 20th percentile of 

households, with the flexibility to go beyond if the family’s 

circumstances merit consideration’’.

Providing help, creating hope

The Catholic Church has long been concerned about 

the issue of poverty and has been actively helping 

the poor, especially those who fall through the cracks.  

Among the poor, the Church focuses on helping single 

parents, families whose parents are out of work, those 

with physical and mental illness, the elderly poor and 

the lonely and abandoned poor.  Apart from financial 

support, the Church has identified other key needs: work 

and employment opportunities, life skills, parenting skills, 

marriage enrichment, care-giver support, education and 

training, emotional support and mentoring.

By addressing these needs, the Church wants to help the 

poor raise their living standards, enhance competencies, 

build resilience, develop self reliance, as well as build a 

social and community network they can find support from.

Adopting a “one-stop” concept that extends care beyond 

the individual to the family, the Church is embarking 

on a project that aims to connect families-in-need to a 

diverse range of social services and resources.  The Church 

wants to move efforts to help upstream, while taking an 

integrated and holistic approach to partnering the poor.

  

Agape Village, a model for partnership with the 
poor

The Catholic Church has embarked on building Agape 

Village, an integrated help centre that brings together 

the services of Caritas Singapore’s 23 Catholic social 

mission groups under one common roof.  

His Grace, Archbishop Nicholas Chia, has appointed Janet 

Ang, a parishioner of the Church of St Francis Xavier 

and managing director of IBM Singapore, to lead a task 

force to bring Agape Village to life, seeing through every 

aspect of the creative process – from concept, fundraising, 

construction to the design and implementation of 

programmes that the village will run.

Janet shared: “The family in dire straits, the frail elderly 

and the neglected child are among those for whom Agape 

Village will provide assistance and create hope.  Serving as 

a first-stop for the poor and disadvantaged, Agape Village 

is committed to partnering families in need to rebuild their 

lives.  The centre aims to touch almost every human need 
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promptly, locally, day in and day out, and always with 

compassion and dignity.  Agape Village will be open to 

people of all religions.”

New ground

The centre will be constructed on a 3,000 sqm plot of 

land at Lorong 8, Toa Payoh.  This is the site of the 

former Braddell Primary School, which was offered to the 

Church by the Government in exchange for the Thomson 

Road land which it acquired from the Church.

Building costs are estimated at $15 million.  Fundraising 

is underway.

Broadly, Agape Village’s partnership with the poor will 

take two forms: first, coordinated care and counselling 

by Caritas Singapore’s affiliate member organisations; 

second, skills enablement supported by facilities like 

training rooms and small social enterprises that include a 

cafe and shops.

Janet said: “The whole idea is to help families break 

out of the poverty cycle and find a sustainable way to 

move forward in their lives.  Through our consultations 

with Caritas Singapore affiliate member organisations, 

we know that effort calls for greater coordination and 

collaboration among agencies.”

 

Love as revealed in Christ

The very meaning of the word “Agape” - love as 

revealed in Jesus, seen as spiritual and selfless and a 

model for humanity – defines how Agape Village will be 

run.

Janet added: “In this day, the poor are still with us and 

we must, as a community, care for these groups who find 

ordinary life so hard.  We are working on a model that 

requires beneficiaries to do all they can possibly do to use 

the help we give them and eventually turn things around 

for themselves.”

The Society of St Vincent de Paul provides monetary 
assistance and food rations to its Friends-in-Need.

The Roman Catholic Prison Ministry offers befriending and 
spiritual support services and after-care needs for prisoners 
and their families. 
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services for children from single-parent poor families and 
others.
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Panellist discussion at the third Social Mission Conference 

2012 attended by some 450 delegates held at the Performing 

Arts Centre of the Catholic Junior College.

LIVING THE CHURCH’S
SOCIAL MISSION
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“Christ has no body now, but yours.
No hands, no feet on earth, but yours.
Yours are the eyes through which
Christ looks compassion into the world.
Yours are the feet with which Christ
walks to do good. Yours are the hands
with which Christ blesses the world.”

~ Saint Theresa of Avila ~

Inspire every Catholic to live out 
the Church’s social teaching
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FORMATION

Caritas Singapore works with different Church 
organisations to promote and facilitate a greater 

understanding of Catholic Social Teaching. 

In the past year, we collaborated with the Singapore 
Pastoral Institute (SPI) and the Archdiocesan 
Commission for Catholic Schools (ACCS) on the 
inclusion of Catholic Social Teaching in the curriculum 
of catechism classes at the parishes, Rites of Christian 
Initiation for Adults (RCIA) and schools.

We also focused on formation programmes for 
leaders of our affiliate member organisations. In May 
2012, a three-day retreat with the theme, “Lead Like 
Jesus”, was held for leaders of our affiliate member 
organisations to inspire and equip them with tools to 
be true Christian leaders. 

We had, in the last year, initiated the engagement of 
young adults in the Catholic community which led to 
the formation of the Young Adults Committee. This 
newly formed Young Adults Committee coordinated 
with Rev Fr David Garcia, OP to present a half-day 
talk on the principles of Catholic Social Teaching to a 
group of 22 young adults in March 2012.

Caritas Singapore continued to promote Catholic 
Social Teaching through the use of study guides 
that we had produced, that is, Salt of the Earth 

and Labourers of the Harvest. During the year, 
introductory talks and sessions were held for groups 
interested to know more about the social teachings 
of the Church and to use these guides as part of their 
community formation programmes. 

On 1 September this year, Caritas Singapore held our 
flagship event, the biennial Social Mission Conference 
with the theme of “Partnering the Poor, Living our 
Faith” at the Performing Arts Centre of the Catholic 
Junior College. Some 450 participants were guided 
to look at the social and economic issues of poverty 
and their root causes through the Catholic lens. They 
were challenged to be more proactive and to re-
examine approaches in helping the poor and needy. 

“Lead Like Jesus” retreat held at Batam for leaders of our 
member organisations.

We promote the spirit of volunteering and 
facilitate the mobilisation of volunteers in 

the Catholic community for our affiliate member 
organisations.

Our online portal helps to match potential volunteers 
with volunteering opportunities available at our 

affiliate member organisations. 

During the year, volunteers were engaged to render 
support at events and activities organised by Caritas 
Singapore such as Charities Week 2012, the 5th CBN 
Golf for Charity 2012 and the third Social Mission 
Conference 2012.

Volunteers helping to distribute 
conference kits at the third Social 
Mission Conference 2012.

Volunteers at work. Volunteers attending to golfers at the 
CBN Golf for Charity 2012 event.

VOLUNTEERING
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We have developed a three-year communications 
strategy to support our overall organisational 

objectives and to help in the effective engagement 
of our stakeholders, ie, our member organisations, 
the Catholic community, the broader community, 
donors and volunteers. 

The communications strategy kickstarted with a 
media and awareness campaign for the third Social 
Mission Conference 2012. Apart from engaging The 
Catholic News, efforts were made to also engage 
the mainstream media. Caritas Singapore took the 
opportunity to formally introduce the Agape Village 
to the media. The Catholic News and The Sunday 
Times reported favourably on the conference as well 
as the Agape Village. 

We attended the Caritas Asia Regional Workshop 
on Baobab and Strategic Planning held in Bangkok 
from 26-28 September 2012. The workshop aimed 
to define new ways of communication in the region 
by using Caritas Baobab, a web-based knowledge-
sharing platform that maximises the benefits of a 
coordinated communications system among Caritas 
offices.  

We have a dedicated page in The Catholic News called 
“Our Social Mission”. This page features the social 
mission work of our affiliate member organisations 
and presents articles on Catholic Social Teaching. 
Many of our articles have been translated into 
Chinese and published in Hai Sing Pao. These articles 
are available on the website of Caritas Singapore.

Caritas Singapore participated in the Caritas Asia Regional 
Workshop on Baobab and Strategic Planning for Caritas 
Member Organisation Communications Group.

COMMUNICATIONS

We seek to involve young adults in the social 
mission of the Church.

In early February this year, 30 young adults came 
together to discuss social issues which they felt 
the Church could address better. As a result of this 
session, the Young Adults Committee was formed. 

The newly-formed Young Adults Committee worked 
with the Formation Committee to organise an 
introductory session on Catholic Social Teaching 
for young adults conducted by Rev Fr David Garcia, 
OP. At this session, actual case studies were used to 
stimulate  discussion.

The Young Adults Committee provides input and 
feedback to Caritas Singapore on our programmes 
and activities. It is planning an event in the coming 

year with the aim of helping young adults understand 
the issue of poverty in Singapore and the Church’s 
role in this area.

Members of the Young Adults Committee at their Strategic 
Review Day.

YOUNG ADULTS
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Volunteers from Catholic Nurses Guild provide medical care skills 
training to the trainees for the boarding school in Myanmar.

A CATALYST
FOR GROWTH
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“The purpose of life is not to be happy 
(happiness without any purpose). It 
is to be useful, to be honourable, to 
be compassionate, to have it make 
some difference that you have lived 
and lived well.” 

~ Ralph Waldo Emerson ~

Support and enable member 
organisations
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COMMUNITY

MEMBERSHIP

FUNDRAISING

COMMUNITY

COMMUNITY

COMMUNITY STRATEGY

The Community Strategy Committee of Caritas 
Singapore was set up to review the community 

landscape in Singapore and develop strategies to 
fulfil the Church’s social mission. 

The Community Strategy Committee completed 
the Archdiocese’s Framework for Helping the Poor 
based on the principles of Catholic Social Teaching. 
The strategy includes holistic and integrated service 
delivery, targeting at upstream help instead of band 
aid help. The approach is to tap on existing resources 
and collaboration with relevant groups. 

Caritas Singapore shared the report with our affiliate 
member organisations and the participants at the 
third Social Mission Conference 2012 (SMC 2012).

Stemming from the SMC 2012, the Community 

Caritas Singapore has 23 affiliate member 
organisations under its umbrella (see pages 26-

27 for the list and profile of members). 

In October 2011, Caritas Singapore introduced 
“A Call to Social Mission”, a new experiential 
programme aimed at identifying potential leaders 
for our affiliate member organisations. Through this 
process, we succeeded in placing new volunteers with 
Archdiocesan Commission for the Pastoral Care of 
Migrants and Itinerant People (ACMI), Catholic AIDS 
Response Effort, Infant Jesus Homes and Children’s 
Centres and Roman Catholic Prison Ministry. 

This year, we developed A Guide to Social Services, a 
directory which provides a database listing of all the 
service and assistance programmes available to the 
needy. This comprehensive summary helped to point 
our affiliate member organisations to the appropriate 
and qualifying programmes. 

Two leaders’ forums were also organised in January 
and September. At these forums, leaders of our 
affiliate member organisations were updated on 
the work undertaken in the area of advocacy and 
were briefed on the proposed framework for helping 

MEMBERSHIP AND CAPACITY BUILDING

the poor. Those serving families, youth and children 
shared their work plans for 2012/13 with us. Besides 
helping to promote dialogue among our leaders, 
these forums also provided opportunities for them 
to network, collaborate and share their experience. 

We held our biennial Leaders’ Retreat in Batam to 
promote networking and continued formation of 
leaders of our affiliate member organisations. A total 
of 30 leaders attended this retreat which focused on 
servant-leadership. 

At the request of the Society of St Vincent de Paul, 
we facilitated a training session for some 100 of its 
members on how to handle people with different 
social problems and the different ways to deal with 
the mentally challenged. The training was conducted 
by @27FSC, a community project of Marine Parade 
Family Service Centre and Catholic Welfare Services, 
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Members’ Event: Second Leaders’ Forum.

Strategy Committee felt “Partnering the Poor” 
must be integral to Caritas Singapore’s approach to 
helping the poor. We hope to integrate a process 
of reflection on our Catholic ethos in our affiliate 
member organisations.

The theme for the third Social Mission Conference 2012 
was “Partnering the Poor, Living Our Faith”.
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MEMBERSHIP

FUNDRAISING

FUNDRAISING

FUNDRAISING
FUNDRAISING

FUNDRAISING

COMMUNITY
FUNDRAISING

Programme Collections

$

Direct Costs 

$

Indirect 
Costs

$

Total 
Fundraising 

Costs $

Fundraising 
Ratio

%

Charities Week 2012 5,235,349 56,174 59,948 116,122 2.2

Capacity Building 
Fund

1,931 0 22 22 1.1

Living Water 366,213 2,702 4,193 6,896 1.9

Many Helping Hands 333,072 64,305 3,814 68,119 20.5

Hongbao Project 19,426 694 222 916 4.7

Others 1,098,096 5,958 12,574 18,532 1.7

TOTAL 7,054,087 129,833 80,774 210,607 3.0

NTUC Fairprice Foundation contributed $100,000 to Boys’ 
Town Singapore for the Boys’ Town Building Fund.

Many Helping Hands Programme

Fundraising Programmes
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CBN Golf for Charity 2012 organised by Catholic Business 
Network at the Sentosa Golf Club with His Grace, 
Archbishop Nicholas Chia as guest-of-honour, raised a 
gross amount of $233, 072.

We maintain a common pool of funds to enable 
our affiliate member organisations to focus 

on their core mission of helping those in need. We 
do this through fundraising events, a GIRO platform 
for donations, and fundraising projects organised by 
friends of Caritas Singapore. 

Charities Week 2012 remains our major fundraising 

project. It was conducted in collaboration with the 
Catholic Welfare Services during Lent through the 
distribution of appeal envelopes at the parishes, 
Catholic schools and foreign Catholic communities. 
This year’s Charities Week raised more than $5.2 
million from parishes, Catholic schools and business 
enterprises.

and Clarity Singapore respectively.

We continue to encourage the use of the Review 

of Life methodology to help our affiliate member 
organisations “analyse, reflect and act” on issues in 
a Christian manner.
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Charities Week 2012

District Parish 2012 $ 2011 $

City

Cathedral of the Good Shepherd 22,297 43,889

St Joseph’s Church (Victoria Street) 201,379 182,266

Church of Sts Peter & Paul 30,928 23,418

Church of Our Lady of Lourdes 21,260 18,388

Church of the Sacred Heart 26,594 32,855

Church of St Teresa 92,813 83,943

Church of St Alphonsus (Novena Church) 28,053 41,544

Church of St Bernadette 274,887 254,502

Church of St Michael 35,150 38,831

East

Church of the Holy Family 550,252 539,702

Church of Our Lady Queen of Peace 150,896 162,505

Church of St Stephen 27,730 56,016

Church of Our Lady of Perpetual Succour 303,292 354,878

Church of the Holy Trinity 171,690 187,221

Church of the Divine Mercy 100,397 93,814

West

Church of St Ignatius 549,041 675,572

Blessed Sacrament Church 173,447 150,974

Church of St Mary of the Angels 173,365 184,350

Church of St Francis of Assisi 41,735 42,242

Church of the Holy Cross 389,419 420,014

North

Church of St Joseph (Bukit Timah) 49,630 58,093

Church of St Anthony 16,207 17,229

Church of the Holy Spirit 323,006 267,852

Church of the Risen Christ 142,238 132,234

Church of Our Lady Star of the Sea 51,669 58,499

Church of Christ the King 165,696 134,128

Serangoon

Church of the Nativity of the BVM 75,539 79,977

Church of the Immaculate Heart of Mary 185,357 194,464

Church of St Francis Xavier 226,820 174,920

St Anne’s Church 97,330 131,682

Church of St Vincent de Paul 160,443 205,726

Total All Parishes 4,858,560 5,041,728

Other
Schools 98,561 154,472

Business & Other Donors 278,228 368,043

Grand Total 5,235,349 5,564,243
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GRANT MAKING

Funds raised by Caritas Singapore are distributed through a formal 
grant making process that covers early engagement, application, 

evaluation, approval, agreement, disbursement and monitoring. 

Applications for grants from various groups were made in two window 
periods in the year. These were reviewed and vetted by a Grants 
Committee and approved by the Board of Caritas Singapore and the 
Agape Fund Trustees. 

A total sum of $4,294,100 was disbursed in the past year (see box 
below).

Group Amount $

Abilities Beyond Limitations and Expectations 
(ABLE)

384,000

Assisi Hospice1 10,000

Archdiocesan Commission for the Pastoral Care 
of Migrants and Itinerant People

344,000

Boys’ Town Singapore2 600,000

Canossaville Children’s Home1 10,000

Catholic AIDS Response Effort 394,000

Catholic Welfare Services (CWS)3 300,000

Caritas Humanitarian Aid & Relief Initiatives, 
Singapore (CHARIS)

280,000

CLARITY Singapore Limited1 5,000

Family Life Society 699,500

Infant Jesus Homes and Children’s Centres 398,000

Marine Parade Family Service Centre 261,100

Roman Catholic Prison Ministry 320,000

Parish Charitable Works4 288,500

TOTAL 4,294,100

1 Caritas Singapore directed as grants, a donation received for the benefit of Assisi 
Hospice, Canossaville Children’s Home and CLARITY Singapore Limited.

2 Grants to Boys’ Town Singapore include a donation of $100,000 received by Caritas 
Singapore for its building project.

3 Grants to CWS include $300,000 being its share of Charities Week 2012 collection.

4 Grants were made to the parishes for various charitable works done by the parishes. 
A breakdown of the causes is provided on pages 66-67.

Children attending programmes at 
the different Infant Jesus Homes and 
Children’s Centres receive support, 
care, therapy, social physical and 
academic activities.

Beneficiaries of St Joseph’s Home, a 
project of Catholic Welfare Centre, 
enjoying a sing-along-session.

A volunteer at Assisi Hospice 
comforting an elderly patient.

CLARITY offers a diversity of 
workshops to stimulate personal and 
family growth.
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ADVOCACY FOR A
BETTER WORLD

Caritas Singapore plans to launch a “poverty” campaign to 

raise awareness of the poor in Singapore.



19

“Christian love of neighbour and 
justice cannot be separated. For 
love implies an absolute demand for 
justice, namely a recognition of the 
dignity and rights of one’s neighbour. 
Justice attains its inner fullness only 
in love.”

~ Synod of Bishops, Justice in the  
World (1974), 34 ~

Being a voice for the poor
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We work in partnership with our affiliate member 
organisations to help the broader community 

become aware of the causes and plight faced by the 
poor and marginalised.

Our Advocacy Working Group has identified “The 
Poor” as our area of focus for the next few years.

A three-part series on poverty was published in the 
Caritas Singapore “Our Social Mission” page in The 
Catholic News during the course of the year. The first 
article featured stories of some of Singapore’s poor. 
The second article highlighted that the poor and 
needy are not as helpless as some of us would think; 
the aim was to create opportunities and motivation for 
self-help and mutual help. The last article built on the 
second, looking at sustainable long term solutions, 
empowering rather than creating dependency. 

We also organised a session on the “Cycle and 
Psyche of Poverty” which was attended by 44 
participants who included social work practitioners, 
non-profit leaders and economists. The objective of 
the workshop was to identify gaps on poverty and 
broad intervention areas. The workshop covered 
poverty in Singapore, causes, profile and potential 
solutions, intergenerational mobility in Singapore 
and giving towards a poverty of dignity. 

The workshop spun off two task forces to delve 
further into research and an advocacy campaign. 
Through research, Caritas Singapore, together with 
the workshop partners, hopes to understand better 
the realities of the “poor” in Singapore. 

Through advocacy, Caritas Singapore and our partners 
hope to raise awareness from the research data to 
launch a “poverty” campaign to raise awareness of 
the poor in Singapore and to get Singaporeans to 
look at partnering the poor with the idea of “getting 
out of poverty” rather than “helping” the poor to 
“get by”.

Foreign domestic workers celebrated Singapore’s second 
Foreign Domestic Worker’s Day in December 2011 
organised by the Foreign Domestic Worker Association 
for Skills Training (FAST) and ACMI.

Sharing by participants at the “Cycle and Psyche of 
Poverty” Workshop.
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The poor and needy are not

as helpless as some of us 

think. When challenged and 

empowered, they can prove 

surprisin
gly resilient and

able to help one another 

effectively.

with them feeling good about themselves, 

affirm
ing their dignity and self-re

spect,” said 

a social worker. “When they do, they will ta
ke 

charge of their liv
es. They will also widen 

their so
cial network and then opportunities 

arise for them to help each other and manage 

issues in the community.” 

 The stre
ngths-based approach stru

ck a 

chord with this so
cial worker because it 

reminded her of something a priest had said at 

a retreat she had attended as a teenager: “God 

doesn’t make junk.” That sentence encapsu-

lates a fundamental principle of Catholic 

Social Teaching – the principle of human 

dignity. The Church teaches that every person 

is of infinite dignity and has rig
hts and duties 

by virtue of being human.  

 The Church also teaches the principle of 

subsidiarity: human beings are by nature 

social. W
hen they come together to form 

groups, these natural groupings should be 

helped to flourish and not be disempowered 

by having a higher-level body take over what 

these groups can do for themselves.

 These principles are often forgotten or not 

taken into account by social service organisa-

tions, even Catholic ones. That is w
hy these 

social workers w
ant to raise awareness of an 

alternative way to help families in need. 

 “In Singapore, we tend to measure success 

materially. The poor are seen as not contribut-

ing and as problems; they don’t contribute, yet 

they receive. The current social service 

framework is one in which the social worker 

says: ‘I’
m the expert, I t

ell you poor and 

uneducated what to do’,” said a social worker, 

describing a pitfall of over-professionalisation.

 That approach can disempower those who 

receive aid. 

 Another social worker said: “We have this 

notion of deserving and undeserving poor. 

Social workers or social work assist
ants sp

end 

much of our tim
e making assessments or 

doing means-testing to make sure the poor 

God doesn’t make junk 

O less, n
ot more, is a

 principle 

that a group of social workers 

working in one of Singapore’s 

oldest and poorest public 

housing estates try
 to abide by. 

They want to do less fo
r the poor they work 

with – yes, less, n
ot more. 

 Their approach goes against th
e instincts 

of most good-hearted people who work or 

volunteer in the social service sector. Surely, 

society should be asking what more we can 

do for the poor, especially in a rich country 

like Singapore? What could justify
 doing  

less?
 But these social workers’ aim is to

 create 

opportunities and motivation for self-help and 

mutual help. They believe in a “strengths-

based” approach to helping the poor, rather 

than a “needs-based” approach. 

 “The helping profession is about getting 

people to help themselves,” said a spokesman 

for the group. “Ironically, the more ‘profes-

sional’ we appear to our service-users, th
e 

more unlikely it becomes for them to step 

forward to help themselves. The more we 

appear to know about problem-solving, the 

less help we get and the less people want to 

get involved. We must re
cognise this if 

we 

want people to be active participants in
 the 

creation of solutions. W
e must re

ally be able 

to talk less and liste
n more.”

 A social worker said: “When we focus on 

the needs and deficits o
f the poor, we  

undermine and even inhibit their str
engths. If 

we are not careful, we might end up keeping 

the poor poor.”

 Here are two examples of how helping a 

community organise itself around its s
trengths 

can lead to good outcomes.

 A mother of fiv
e was pregnant with her 

sixth child. Her boyfriend was a 

non-Singaporean and had overstayed in the  

country. He had to move to Johor Bahru and  

she went there to spend time with him, 

leaving her two oldest children behind.  

 Neighbours ste
pped in to help care for the 

children – one family took in the boy, another 

took in the girl. 

 A number of elderly single people living 

alone in rental blocks were weighed down by 

their se
nse of iso

lation. Social workers 

encouraged them to gather every Saturday at 

the void deck for lunch. Only a handful 

showed up at firs
t. 

 Then some of those who came offered to 

contribute food. One man brought his Chinese 

musical instrument, the er-hu, and performed 

for the rest. O
thers to

ld stories. In
 this way, 

the social workers w
ere able to help the old 

folks break out of their iso
lation. The 

“home-ground advantage” and room for 

self-determination made the old folks the 

“hosts” and the social workers and volunteers 

the “guests”.  

 Once they started talking to each other, 

they were able to find ways to help each other 

as they knew a lot about their neighbours: if
 

one person was ill,
 for example, the one living 

next door could remind him to take his 

medicine.  

 But what do these self-help efforts a
dd up 

to in the end? Do they make a difference in a 

family’s ability to climb out of poverty? 

  “It may not make them rich, but it s
tarts 

don’t take advantage of help schemes. W
e 

unwittingly become the ‘social chain’ that 

protects and locks out the system rather than 

the catalyst th
at facilitates ‘so

cial change’ 

against poverty. That is p
erhaps why people 

experience the system as uncompassionate 

despite the plethora of help schemes.” 

 The stre
ngths-based approach has been 

used to good effect in America, where the 

Family Independence Initiative (FII) h
as 

helped hundreds of families in low-income 

communities in cities lik
e Oakland 

(California) and Boston (Massachusetts) 

reach goals th
ey set for themselves. Although 

still 
small, its

 results h
ave been so strik

ing 

that the White House has taken notice. 

 FII creates a stru
cture for families that 

encourages a sense of control, desire for 

self-determination, and mutual support. It
 

encourages and rewards personal initiative 

instead of penalisin
g – by reducing eligibility 

for aid – families who make progress.

 It asks participating families to write down 

their goals, it
 gives each family a computer 

and enlists 
them to fill i

n a questionnaire each 

month that tracks changes in things lik
e 

income, assets, debts, health, education, 

skills, 
social networks and civic engagement. 

It se
eks not to implement change but to elicit 

them from others.

 FII fo
under Maurice Lim Miller believes 

that the American social welfare system 

focuses too much on poor people’s needs and 

deficits, w
hile overlooking – and even 

inhibiting – their str
engths. A safety net is 

crucial when people are in crisis,
 he told The 

New York Times. But most poor families are 

not in free fall. They don’t need nets to
 catch 

them so much as they need springboards to 

jump higher.

The “strengths-based”

approach in action 

This is a
n example of how social workers have used the 

strengths-based approach.

 Mr S Tan (not his real name) was a single father with 

five children, aged four to 11, living in a two-room 

rental flat in central Singapore. He would go to work 

early each morning, and was not able to supervise his 

children before they left for school. 

 The eldest child, 11, took on that role. When the baby 

of the family, who is four, overslept, the eldest sta
yed 

home. On days like that, all five children would end up 

skipping school. On other days, when the siblings had no 

food at home, they would go around the neighbourhood 

begging. 

 Social workers based in the area could have swooped 

in to fix this family’s problems, but decided instead to 

tap on the community’s stre
ngths. They encouraged 

other families in the same rental block to think of ways 

to help Mr Tan and his children.   

 A small group of neighbours – three women and a 

man - got together to discuss the situation. They decided 

they would walk Mr Tan’s children to school, and arrange 

for them to be enrolled in before-and-after school 

programmes. They would ask shopkeepers in the area to 

provide meals for the children on days when they ran 

out of food at home. One woman brought up Mr Tan’s 

gambling problem and said they had to do something 

about it. Th
at’s when the man in the group spoke up. He 

felt they should not confront Mr Tan about his gambling 

right away. They should first offer Mr Tan their help, he 

said, and later, he would find a time to speak to Mr Tan 

“man-to-man” about the gambling.

 That meeting was an eye-opener for the social worker 

present. It re
affirmed her belief that these families, 

often seen as needy or dysfunctional, knew how to use 

their resources to help each other. They may be 

financially poor but when they come together, they are 

rich in ideas, information and care and concern for one 

another.  

 “You must believe that they can and they will take 

charge. When you create a leadership vacuum, when the 

social worker does not take charge but facilitates, leaders 

spring from nowhere,” said the social worker.

A number of elderly single people living alone were weighed down by isolation.  After social 

workers encouraged them to meet weekly, they started talking to each other and soon were 

able to �nd ways to help each other. If 
one person was ill, f

or example, his neighbour would 
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move about. If you take this out of the equation 

what do I do? What do we the disabled do? Are 

the disabled meant to stay home?” asked June 

Hoo a regular user of the London taxis. 

Although prior bookings are necessary, they  

are available daily without any restrictions on 

timing and who can use them.

 When the matter was raised, June, like 

several other disabled, were given a list of other 

options they could use to get them to work, 

school, shopping or just simply to be able to go 

out with friends and family and not be cooped 

up at home. But when they called, they found 

only the Handicaps Welfare Association has a

service for its m
embers which ferries them to 

and from work. It is n
ot a taxi service hence it

is not available to the public.

 June says: “Why is it th
at disabled equals 

welfare? A transport issue is not a welfare 

issue. The disabled should be treated as people 

and not a group that needs to be handled by 

welfare groups. What is wrong with having a 

fleet available, a fleet for both the able and the 

disabled? Remember these London cabs are 

not just used by the locals, many foreigners 

who come here for medical treatment engage 

the services of the London cab.”

 Judy Wee of the Muscular Dystrophy 

Association says: “We would like to lead a 

spontaneous life not one that is always 

planned. If I’m
 with friends and we decide to 

travel some distance for a meal, I will not be 

able to join them because I have not made a 

booking for a vehicle suitable for my wheel-

chair. I feel it’s im
portant to have flexibility 

and options just like others do.”

 Judy points out that Singapore’s trains are 

accessible, with designated space for wheel-

chair users. “But we cannot get into the train 

especially during peak hours let alone the 

designated area. Nobody gives way, even after 

I say ‘excuse me’ numerous times. 

 “If I do manage to get in, it again takes 

numerous ‘excuse me’s ‘ to get out, if I c
an 

make it out the door in time that is. People 

need to be more gracious, they need to be more 

aware, which is why our association is taking 

that lead and creating awareness and starting 

with schools.”

 Although Judy recognises that there has 

been incremental progress in the accessibility 

for the disabled, there is also a need for society 

to play their part. 

 Universal accessibility must go hand in 

hand with graciousness and awareness. Every 

human person is deeply connected to every 

other person. We are called to stand together as 

one human family in the Church’s social 

teaching of the principle of solidarity.

If you were 28 inches wide

A disability may be physical, cognitive, 

mental, sensory, emotional, developmental or 

a combination of these. A disability may occur 

during a person’s lifetime or may be present 

from birth. Many disabilities are a result of 

road accidents. On Dec 13, 2006, the United 

Nations formally agreed on the Convention on 

the Rights of Persons with Disabilities, the first 

human rights treaty of the 21st century, to 

protect and enhance the rights and 

opportunities of the world’s estimated 650 

million disabled people. The Singapore 

government has expressed its intention to 

sign the Convention on the Rights of Persons 

with Disabilities in 2012 .

 The Enabling Masterplan launched in 2007 

to develop the basic framework to enable 

persons with disabilities to better integrate in 

society, is now working on this next five-year 

plan. It is expected to be ready by early 2012 

and will adopt a life-course approach starting 

with the early pre-school years, then going on 

to the education and employment phase of 

life and the adult and ageing years. 

 Play your part by sharing your views and 

suggestions to feedback-disability@cel.sg.

“If I’m with friends and we decide to travel some distance for a meal, I will not be able to join them because I have not made a booking for a vehicle suitable 

for my wheelchair. I feel it’s im
portant to have flexibility and options just like others do.” – Judy Wee of the Muscular Dystrophy Association 

If you were 28 inches wide you would think moving about 

freely should not pose too much of a challenge. Well not 

quite, because 28 inches - about 72 cm - is the width of an 

average wheelchair. And that’s a stumbling block for the 

wheelchair bound. SHIMA ROY looks at accessibility.

   WHAT YOU CAN DO

Getting around by wheelchair

WAS about to muster up some courage 

and invite a former classmate for some of 

the famous Waterloo Street rojak a stone’s 

throw from my office. She had been hinting 

subtly for weeks and for many of us, friend-

ships are fortified over good food. But the 

problem was  less about meeting over a meal, 

than how my disabled friend would wheel her 

way to meet me. 

 The quickest way would be to take the train 

to Bras Basah, except that certain changes have 

taken place of late and the signage for the 

disabled is rather misleading. There are two 

exits  on the  Waterloo Street side, but both are 

not accessible to the disabled. Only one exit, at 

the Singapore Management University, would 

be useful but would involve quite a detour. Up 

to September this year, a disabled person could 

use that exit and wheel herself across the 

junction of Queen’s Street and Bras Basah as 

there was a traffic  light there. But that set of 

lights has since moved, although the mislead-

ing signage remains. 

 The lack of universal access is not novel. 

Shouldn’t every person have the right and the 

responsibility to have a say and take action in 

matters that determine our shared future? Are 

we not at a stage of development where 

nobody should be left behind and where a 

change in mindset is pivotal in order to become 

an inclusive society? This  requires recognising 

that we are equally responsible for each other, 

especially those most in need.

 All human persons have a right and duty to 

take action in what determines their well-being 

and future. However in society today, those 

who are not vocal, assertive or powerful and 

those whose needs are an “inconvenience” to 

the majority often get ignored. Seeking the 

good of each person requires dialogue, 

listening to everyone and understanding each 

person’s needs. In particular, it requires an 

effort to look out for the marginalised and 

more importantly, include them. 

 The future of the small fleet of London cabs 

has been in the news recently, following the 

operator’s decision to phase them out. These 

taxis were as novelty when they first arrived in 

Singapore, but today they are a much-needed 

means of public transport for the disabled, 

especially those using high-backed, motorised 

and bigger wheelchairs.

 Unfortunately the taxis are reaching the end 

of their statutory lifespan, and the operator 

says its drivers have been  facing shrinking 

demand for their services. After  the issue was 

highlighted in the media, the London taxis 

have been given a reprieve and will be around  

for  a little longer while transport authorities 

look for a long term solution. 

 “The London cabs give us the freedom to 
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          There’s beauty

in brokenness
Many people live with mental illness 

but fear of the stigma stops many from 

seeking the help they need. As 

Christians, we are called to reach out 

to those struggling to cope.
ORE  than one in 10 people 

living in Singapore today will 

suffer from mental illness at 

some point in their lives, according to the 

recently released Singapore Mental 

Health Study based on a survey of 6,600 

people. 
 This means that someone seated beside 

you during Mass might well be living 

with a mental illness or may have an 

affected family member.

 One such person is Angie Tan. If you 

looked at the bright-eyed 32-year-old 

university graduate, you would never 

guess that she has schizophrenia. She was 

diagnosed several years ago after she had 

a serious breakdown at home and turned 

uncharacteristically violent towards her 

family members. 

 Although no one was hurt, Angie’s 

parents sought the help of a psychiatrist 

for their only child. 

 Since her diagnosis, Angie has been 

receiving regular therapy and treatment. 

She finds peace in church and takes 

comfort in attending Mass. She has had 

trouble holding a job, though, and intends 

pursuing her studies. 

 As a family, Angie and her parents 

decided to face the reality of her mental 

illness head on, without denial or delay. 

They regularly consult her psychiatrist 

and social worker. 

 That is in sharp contrast with what the 

mental health study found – two in three 

people with a mental illness never seek 

help. Even among those who do, many 

delay therapy or treatment by several 

years, possibly aggravating their 

condition. 

 People struggling with mental illness 

remain stigmatised. Surveys show that 

they are less likely to find employment or 

a life-partner. They are also less likely to 

obtain insurance or the quality medical 

care they need. These realities have much 

to do with how mental illness is 

perceived. 

 A common misconception is that the 

mentally ill are dangerous and should be 

institutionalised. Another common 

misconception is that mental illness is 

due to problems with the will, intellect or 

imagination of sufferers. These 

misconceptions have been scientifically 

disproved, but are difficult to change. 

 Perhaps it is the fear of discrimination 

that prevents people who need help from 

seeking it. 

 Roland Tay, 14, is a bright, fun-loving 

teenager attending a top school where the 

pressure to succeed is extremely high. 

His teachers, tutors and parents have high  

expectations for him, and he knows it. 

 Recently, Roland lost consciousness 

briefly during catechism. It was not the 

first time he had fainted. When physical 

checks drew a blank, a psychological 

examination revealed that Roland’s 

fainting spells were brought about by his 

inability to cope with stress from 

schoolwork. 

    But his parents were unable to accept  

this diagnosis and opted against any  

further action – partly fearing that the  

stigma of mental illness might hinder  

their son’s progress in life. 

 In the Bible, we hear of how Jesus 

cured those he encountered from 

physical, mental and even spiritual 

ailments (Matthew 4:14). Viewed in   

this light, churches are natural places   

of encounter with those struggling with  

mental illness. In their desire to be  

comforted or consoled, many turn to God  

and the Christian community for solace  

and support. 

 But how the Christian community 

treats the mentally ill ranges from 

acceptance to alienation. 

 Those coping with mental illness are 

human beings who possess an equal 

dignity that their conditions do not 

destroy or diminish. Blessed Pope John 

Paul II once said: “Whoever suffers 

from mental illness ‘always’ bears 

God’s image and likeness in 

themselves, as does every human being. 

In addition they ‘always’ have the 

inalienable right not only to be 

considered as an image of God…but 

also to be treated as such.” 

 The Christian community is where the 

unique gifts, talents and contributions of 

all, including those with mental illness, 

can be acknowledged and appreciated for 

the good of the whole community. 

 Clara Soh, 64, served in her parish’s 

social work ministry for several years 

before stepping down because of her age. 

Soon, she began experiencing guilt and 

started contemplating suicide for not 

being able to serve as she did before. 

 Normally friendly and full of life, 

Clara became withdrawn from her family 

and friends. 

 Her sons took her to a parish 

counsellor who found that Clara was 

depressed. She is coping with her 

condition, thanks to pastoral support from 

a religious brother in her parish’s pastoral 

team. 
 The support of her family and 

community has been essential in helping 

Clara regain a sense of self-worth.

In our families, parishes, ministries 

and communities, how accepting or 

loving have we been towards those 

with mental illness? Here are some 

points to consider. 

If you have a mental illness

 Seek out a spiritual director or companion 

to confide in so you can get help and  

allow others in your community to 

understand your background. 

 Seek professional therapy or treatment.

 Turn to family and friends for support.

If you know someone with a

mental illness

 Educate yourself about the different types 

of mental illness.

 Accept those who exhibit unusual 

behaviour and give them the benefit of 

the doubt.

 Consciously reach out and engage those 

you know are struggling with mental 

illness and involve them in your 

community.

For clergy, religious and

pastoral workers

 Educate yourself about the different types 

of mental illness and their accompanying 

symptoms. 

 Provide simple educational material to 

parishioners.

 Be conscious of the possibility that some of 

those you encounter may be struggling 

with mental illness.

 Find out which support groups are 

available to refer to those who need help.

 Set aside one homily a year to preach the 

Christian response to mental illness. 

CONTACT CLARITY SINGAPORE 

CLARITY Singapore provides assessment and intervention

programmes for those struggling with depression, anxiety, and mood disorders. 

Besides follow-up care and support for family members and caregivers, it also offers 

customised psycho-education sessions and mental wellness group exercises. 

If you are seeking assistance or know of someone who may need help, 

call 9710 3733 or e-mail ask@clarity-singapore.org
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HE cans of Kingfisher beer 
and bottles of Jacob’s Creek 
wine sitting on the 

supermarket shelves seemed to be 
calling out to him. He could just grab 
them and drown his sorrows, like he 
had done in the past.
 After all, he had just been kicked 
out of his rented room. He felt 
insecure and exploited, working as a 
restaurant floor manager for 15 hours 
a day, six days a week for $1,100 a 
month.
 But instead of going into the shop, 
Victor called the person who had 
been his listening ear for the last five 
months.
 The prison ministry worker at the 
other end of the line did not tell him 
what to do. She just asked him to 
think things through.
 “Remember the place you came 
from, how long you were in there,” 
she said.
 In Victor’s case, the place was 
Changi Prison and the time served 
was seven years. Previously an 
alcoholic, he had been in and out of 
jail 10 times for crimes like 
shoplifting.
 The reminder was enough to stop 
him from doing something foolish. If 
the 62-year-old were caught again, he 
could face 10 years’ jail or more.
 “I’m a repeat offender, I’m trying 
to build up my life and stand on my 
own feet,” Victor said during an 
interview at a neighbourhood coffee 
shop. “But if I need help, the prison 
ministry is always there for me.”
 For the past 35 years, the Roman 

Catholic Prison Ministry (RCPM) 
has been there for inmates and 
ex-offenders. Inspired by the words 
in the Gospel of Matthew, “I was in 
prison and you visited me,” the 
ministry runs 30 counselling sessions 
a week for hundreds of inmates.
 During each session, religious 
chaplains and lay volunteers from the 
ministry meet the inmates and talk 
about their troubles. They also 
celebrate Mass and arrange for the 
sacraments of baptism, confirmation, 
reconciliation and anointing of the 
sick.
 Most of the inmates who come are 
Catholic, but non-Catholics are also 
welcome. Attendance is voluntary.
 The work does not end when 
offenders leave prison. Ex-offenders 
can opt for a volunteer befriender 
who helps them return to their parish. 
The RCPM office next to the Church 
of the Immaculate Heart of Mary also 
keeps its doors open to ex-offenders 

who need help.
 Like Victor, many ex-offenders 
need friends to keep them on the 
right path.
 Rodney, previously a drug addict 
and serial offender, said that it is the 
community around him that keeps 
him out of trouble.
 “If I fail this time, I not only fail 
God, I also fail a lot of people who 
gave of themselves to help me,” he 
said. “They’re like messengers sent by 
God to help me turn around my life.”
 But the 70-year-old, tattoo-covered 
vehicle mechanic has not always 
found it easy to fit in after his release.
 He recalls meeting a friend on the 
street and asking him out for coffee. 
When the friend said that he had an 
appointment, Rodney felt hurt.
 “Maybe he really had an 
appointment,” Rodney said. “But I 
had that feeling that people are 
shying away from me. People like us, 
we have a guilty conscience and tend 
to take things negatively.”
 Even though Victor now has a 
full-time job and his own HDB flat, 
he will never forget how the prison 
ministry reached out to him when he 
was still serving time. 
 Nor will he forget being moved to 
tears by the sight of a Redemptorist 
priest making his way to meet 
prisoners. 
 “Once I saw Father Paul Pang 
soaking wet after arriving in a storm 
and walking uphill for 15 minutes to 
get to the prison cluster,” he says. “I 
cried because I didn’t think anyone 
would do such a thing for us.”

What can we do
for ex-offenders?

        I’m a 
repeat offender, 
I’m trying to 
build up my life 
and stand on my 
own feet. But if I 
need help, the 
prison ministry 
is always there 
for me.

– Victor, 62, who has 
been in and out of jail 10 
times for crimes like 
shoplifting.

        If I fail this 
time, I not only fail 
God, I also fail a 
lot of people who 
gave of themselves 
to help me. They’re 
like messengers 
sent by God to 
help me turn 
around my life.

– Rodney, 70, a former 
drug addict and serial 
o�ender. 

For 35 years, the priests 
and volunteers with the 
Roman Catholic Prison 
Ministry have been helping 
prisoners and ex-offenders. 
Inspired by the words in 
the Gospel of Matthew, “I 
was in prison and you 
visited me,” the ministry 
runs 30 counselling 
sessions a week for 
hundreds of inmates. ACT 

As Christians, we are called to extend the 
hand of friendship to those who feel left 

out. The Church teaches us that we 
human beings are by nature social, and 
by God’s design, not meant to be alone. 

“Rather, the fullness of our human 
dignity is realised only in relationship 

with others.” (Salt of the Earth, A Group 
Study Guide on the Basic Principles of 
Catholic Social Teachings, by Caritas 

Singapore.)

Some ex-offenders said they feel lonely 
when attending Catholic churches and 

suggested parishes organise more 
activities to engage them. 

The Roman Catholic Prison Ministry can 
be reached at tel: 6100 7276 or e-mail 

ask.rcpm@rcpm.org.sg.

Church welcomesproposed changes 

THE DEATH PENALTY

Singapore has proposed easing the mandatory death penalty for drug trafficking and murderin some cases. This is something the Church welcomes.

B
 “The end of the story is not at the end of the rope,” added the Redemptorist priest who is based at the Novena Church. Not having the death penalty would give prisoners a chance to reform and be converted. “I can say this from experience. 

Some have become a credit to society… in 
the prison, there is already tremendous change,” said Fr Pang, 76, who has been with RCPM for about seven years and visits 

convicts on death row every week.  He recalled a condemned prisoner who 
said he had made a decision not to become a 
Catholic. The man later read a book, The Glories of Mary, which was written by the 
founder of the Redemptorist Congregation, 
St Alphonsus Liguori. The book changed this prisoner’s life. “He probably didn’t know I was a Redemptorist, but he eventually became a 

fervent and wise Catholic, moving on to read deep books like St Augustine’s City of 
God,” said Fr Pang. The teachings of Jesus and the Church clearly emphasise the dignity of the human 

person, and that every human life is to be cherished.  The Church’s understanding of the use of 
the death penalty has evolved. In the past, 
the Church permitted and even used the death penalty because it viewed execution 
as the only way to protect society from a grave threat to human life.  However, in modern times, that threat is 

no longer there, rendering capital punishment unnecessary, as Pope John Paul 
II made clear in his 1995 encyclical Evangelium Vitae (The Gospel of Life). “(The) nature and extent of the punishment … ought not go to the extreme 

of executing the offender except in cases of 
absolute necessity: in other words, when it 
would not be possible otherwise to defend 
society,” the late Pope wrote. “Today, however, as a result of steady improvements 
in the organisation of the penal system, such 
cases are very rare, if not practically non-existent.” 

 He also wrote that “the principle set forth 
in the Catechism of the Catholic Church remains valid: ‘If bloodless means are sufficient to defend human lives against an 

aggressor and to protect public order and the safety of persons, public authority must 
limit itself to such means, because they better correspond to the concrete conditions 
of the common good and are more in conformity to the dignity of the human person.’”

 Like Fr Pang, Father Paul Staes, CICM, 
also believes that Catholics in Singapore are 
generally not concerned or aware about the 
Social Teachings of the Church, particularly 
regarding the death penalty.     Fr Staes, 75, a Belgian priest who has  lived in Singapore since 1994, first started 

visiting prisoners as a young student in Rome. He is a regular visitor to prisoners in 
Singapore, though not to those on death row.
 He feels Catholics here are not terribly concerned about the death penalty, seem unaware about the Church’s teachings and 

many may be in favour of it or have no opinion about it.  How can the situation be remedied? Fr Staes suggested: “I would say it’s not a 
matter of information but it’s a matter of faith formation in the total context of respect for life in all its forms, also when it 

comes to war and abortion.” On the issue of whether the death penalty 
is a deterrent to crime, Fr Staes agrees with 
the body of opinion worldwide that says this 
link has not been directly or conclusively 

proven, despite numerous studies on capital 
punishment.  He added: “Even if it is a deterrent, it does not create an environment of respect 

for life. Cruelty in any form damages also 
the person who is cruel. That is why, for example, we say, no cruelty to animals because it makes you a cruel person. This is 

why we advocate kindness and compassion.” To this end, he was glad to see a letter on 
the recent proposed changes to the mandatory death penalty written by Caritas 
Singapore chairman George Lim. (See other 
story.) 
 Fr Staes expressed optimism about Singapore’s latest proposals, adding that Singapore has come a long way  from having more than 70 executions annually in 

the mid-1990s, to no executions in Singapore in 2010, and four executions in 
2011, according to recent statistics from the 
Singapore Prison Service. These statistics 
also show that the total convicted penal population was around 10,000 in 2011, of 
whom about 6,000 were in prison for drug 
offences, including consumption and possession.  In taking the discussion on the death penalty forward, Fr Pang stressed the importance of continued dialogue with the 

government, as well as with society.  “The Church must not impose her view 
on society because we live in a multi-religious, multi-racial society. The solution is dialogue, calmly searching  for 

the best direction to take for the good of Singapore. We’re not a pressure group: pressure is something abhorrent, coercing 
people from outside. Instead, we seek to cultivate interior freedom in accordance with the dignity of respect for the human person,” he said. “The Church is above party politics but 

the Church has the right to make pronouncements on the moral aspects of society. Unless we can dialogue with them, 
we’re not being the leaven in society.”

efore Nguyen Tuong Van, 25, was executed, witnesses say he displayed a strong faith, telling those close to him: “We will see each other 
in our Father’s house.”  The Vietnamese Australian, baptised  a 
Catholic on death row in Changi Prison, was hanged for drug trafficking in December 2005. Nguyen had tried to smuggle heroin through Singapore, and had 

said his motivation was to pay off debts incurred by his twin brother. The high-profile case sparked an outcry especially in Australia and drew attention to 
the use of the death penalty in Singapore. Nguyen, who took the baptismal name Caleb, had drawn comfort from a book about the English martyr, St Thomas More, 

said Father Paul Pang, who was then chaplain at the Roman Catholic Prison Ministry (RCPM). He remains the spiritual 
director of RCPM, a member organisation 
of Caritas Singapore. In early July, Singapore proposed easing 
its mandatory death penalty for drug trafficking and murder in some cases.  Judges will have the discretion to sentence low-level drug couriers either to death or to life imprisonment with caning, 

instead of the mandatory death penalty. This 
will be the case only when two specific conditions are met: that the offender is only 
a courier, or drug mule, and is not involved 
in the supply or distribution of drugs; and if 
the offender co-operates with the authorities, or is mentally disabled. In homicide cases, the mandatory death 

penalty will  be applied only when there is a 
proven intention to kill. “The proposed changes in the law are something very positive and a step in the right direction,” said Fr Pang, adding that 

the Church’s opposition to the death penalty 
is clear. 
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bel
iev

ers
,” P

op
e B

ene
dic

t sa
id,

 

add
ing

 th
at “

the
re 

will 
nev

er 
be 

a 

situ
ati

on
 wher

e th
e c

har
ity

 of
 ea

ch 

ind
ivi

du
al C

hri
stia

n i
s u

nn
ece

s-

sar
y, b

eca
use

 in
 ad

dit
ion

 to
 ju

stic
e 

man 
nee

ds,
 an

d w
ill 

alw
ays

 ne
ed,

 

lov
e.”

 
When

 yo
u l

oo
k a

rou
nd

 yo
u, 

do
 

yo
u n

oti
ce 

peo
ple

 in
 yo

ur 
life

 who
 

are
 po

or 
and

 m
igh

t n
eed

 he
lp?

 

What
 ca

n y
ou

 do
 pe

rso
nal

ly 
in 

yo
ur 

nei
gh

bo
urh

oo
d, 

par
ish

, 

work
pla

ce 
or 

soc
iet

y t
o h

elp
 th

ose
 

who
 liv

e in
 po

ver
ty?

IN
 SIN

GAPORE, as
 in

 m
any

 

oth
er 

cou
ntr

ies
, m

ost
 pe

op
le 

ten
d t

o m
ov

e w
ith

 ot
her

s o
f 

the
 sa

me s
oci

o-e
con

om
ic c

las
s. 

The 
ric

h h
ave

 ric
h f

rie
nd

s, t
he 

midd
le-

cla
ss 

han
g o

ut 
with

 ot
her

 

midd
le-

cla
ss 

fol
k, 

and
 th

ose
 who

 

are
 po

or 
spe

nd
 m

ost
 of

 th
eir

 tim
e 

with
 ot

her
s li

ke 
the

m. 

 
But 

un
lik

e in
 cit

ies
 lik

e 

Calc
utt

a, w
her

e it
 is 

har
d t

o m
iss

 

the
 po

or 
who

 liv
e o

n t
he 

str
eet

s, 

most
 of

 Sing
apo

re’
s s

tre
ets

 ar
e a

s 

cle
ar 

of 
beg

gar
s a

nd
 ho

mele
ss 

peo
ple

 as
 th

ey 
are

 of
 lit

ter
.

 
Yet, 

the
re 

are
 po

or 
peo

ple
 in

 

thi
s ri

ch 
cit

y s
tat

e. S
om

e w
ere

 

on
ce 

com
for

tab
ly 

midd
le-

cla
ss 

bu
t 

the
 lo

ss 
of 

a jo
b, 

illn
ess

, d
isa

bil
ity

 

or 
oth

er 
cha

ng
ed 

cir
cum

sta
nce

s le
d 

to 
a r

api
d d

ecl
ine

 in
 th

eir
 finan

cia
l 

well
-be

ing
. O

the
rs w

ere
 bo

rn 
po

or 

and
 fo

un
d i

t h
ard

 to
 br

eak
 ou

t o
f 

po
ver

ty.  

Middle-
age

d an
d

unem
ploy

ed

Pete
r C

han
 ha

d b
een

 work
ing

 in
 a 

mult
ina

tio
nal

 co
mpan

y f
or 

more
 

tha
n 2

0 y
ear

s, r
isin

g t
hro

ug
h t

he 

ran
ks 

to 
bec

om
e a

 m
ana

ger
. L

ife
 

for
 hi

m an
d h

is f
am

ily
 was 

com
for

tab
le. 

His h
om

em
ake

r w
ife

 

had
 ra

ise
d t

hei
r tw

o s
on

s, w
ho

 

made
 it 

to 
un

ive
rsi

ty. 

 
Then

 Pete
r w

as 
dia

gn
ose

d w
ith

 

sec
on

d-s
tag

e p
anc

rea
tic

 ca
nce

r. H
e 

was 
for

ced
 to

 tak
e a

n e
xte

nd
ed 

lea
ve 

of 
abs

enc
e f

rom
 work

 to
 

see
k m

edi
cal

 tre
atm

ent
, w

hic
h l

eft
 

him
 weak

 an
d f

rai
l. H

is i
lln

ess
 

too
k a

 to
ll o

n h
is w

ork
 pe

rfo
r-

manc
e a

nd
 he

 was 
dis

miss
ed 

fro
m 

his
 po

siti
on

. 

 
When

 he
 sta

rte
d j

ob 
hun

tin
g 

aga
in,

 Pete
r, i

n h
is m

id-
50s

, fo
und

 

he 
had

 to
 co

mpet
e w

ith
 yo

ung
er 

work
ers

 on
 lo

wer 
sal

ari
es.

 He h
as 

bee
n j

obl
ess

 fo
r c

los
e to

 a y
ear

. H
e 

and
 hi

s fa
mily

 do
wngr

ade
d t

o a
 

sm
alle

r fl
at t

o c
lea

r so
me o

f h
is 

deb
ts. 

Rela
tiv

es 
hel

ped
, bu

t n
ot 

for
 

lon
g. T

he 
fam

ily
 fa

ces
 an

 un
cer

tain
 

fut
ure

 with
 ris

ing
 liv

ing
 co

sts
 an

d 

rec
urr

ing
 m

edi
cal

 bi
lls.

 

 
When

 Pete
r a

pp
lie

d f
or 

go
ver

nm
ent

 aid
, h

e w
as 

tol
d h

e 

had
 to

 ac
cep

t o
ne 

of 
the

 jo
bs 

tha
t 

had
 be

en 
matc

hed
 to

 hi
m. H

e 

dec
lin

ed 
as 

he 
bel

iev
es 

the
 jo

bs 

off
ere

d d
o n

ot 
ser

ve 
his

 be
st 

Som
e o

f S
ing

apo
re’s

 

poo
r sh

are
 the

ir s
tor

ies
 

in t
oda

y’s
 ar

ticl
e, t

he 

firs
t o

f a
 thr

ee-
par

t 

ser
ies

 on
 po

ver
ty.

    
 A re

cen
t jo

int
 stu

dy
 by

 th
e 

Cath
oli

c W
elf

are
 Serv

ice
s, S

oci
ety

 

of 
St V

inc
ent

 de
 Paul

 an
d C

ari
tas

 

Sing
apo

re 
hel

ped
 sh

ed 
som

e li
gh

t o
n 

the
 po

or 
who

 ar
e s

erv
ed 

by
 Cath

oli
c 

cha
riti

es 
in 

Sing
apo

re.
 It 

ide
nti

fie
d 

fou
r d

isti
nct

 gr
ou

ps 
who

 cu
rre

ntl
y 

rec
eiv

e a
id 

fro
m Cath

oli
c c

har
itie

s. 

They
 are

 the
 midd

le-
age

d u
nem

plo
yed

, 

sin
gle

 pa
ren

ts, 
the

 eld
erl

y, 
and

 th
ose

 

suf
fer

ing
 fro

m di
sab

ilit
ies

.  

     
In 

the
 first 

of 
a th

ree
-pa

rt s
eri

es 
on

 

po
ver

ty,
 so

me o
f th

ese
 fa

milie
s s

har
e 

the
ir s

tor
ies

 with
 Cari

tas
 Sing

apo
re.

R

New centre to help

Telok Blangah families 

esid
ents in

 Telo
k Blan

gah can
 look 

forward
 to more c

ommunity ser
vices

 

and act
ivitie

s w
ith the ar

rival o
f a 

new 

fam
ily ser

vice 
cen

tre 
(FSC) at

 Block 27, Telo
k 

Blan
gah Way.

 Simply nam
ed @27FSC, it 

has b
een

 

providing cas
ework managem

ent, c
ounsell

ing 

and outrea
ch program

mes t
hrough home visit

s, 

social
 act

ivitie
s an

d providing food rat
ions an

d 

financial
 ass

ista
nce t

o need
y fam

ilie
s in

 

difficulty.
 

 Now that i
ts n

ew prem
ises

 are
 rea

dy, 

@27FSC hopes t
o roll o

ut m
ore s

erv
ices

, su
ch 

as p
rogram

mes f
or fa

milie
s w

ith young 

children
, fo

cusing on nutriti
on, lif

e sk
ills

 and 

fam
ily bonding. 

 The ce
ntre 

is a
 bran

ch of M
arin

e P
arad

e F
SC 

which has h
elped res

idents in
 this a

rea 
for ab

out 

10 years
. @

27FSC Centre 
Manager A

nnie C
hia, 

who prev
iously worked at M

arin
e P

arad
e F

SC, 

said
 it w

as t
he ri

ght tim
e to

 expand.

 The new cen
tre 

fills a
 gap in social

 ser
vices

 

covera
ge fo

r ab
out 117 Housing Board

 blocks 

in the T
elo

k Blan
gah are

a. B
esid

es i
ts M

arin
e 

Para
de pare

nt office, 
@27FSC is a

lso 

supported
 by Carit

as S
ingapore, 

Cath
olic 

Welfa
re S

erv
ices

 and the B
rothers 

of St 

Gabriel
.

 The F
SC has s

ix sta
ff a

nd so far
 has s

erv
ed 

about 250 househ
olds. W

ith donatio
ns of fo

od 

supplies
 fro

m individuals 
and groups su

ch as 

the C
hrist

ian
 Community Chapel, 

the F
SC 

supports 
about 80 fam

ilie
s w

ith supplies
 such 

as m
ilk powder, 

cooking oil a
nd ric

e. S
uch 

em
erg

ency supplies
 are

 cri
tica

l fo
r lo

w-income 

fam
ilie

s w
aiti

ng to rec
eiv

e fi
nancial

 aid
, sa

id 

Ms C
hia.

 @27FSC holds a 
week

ly outrea
ch 

program
me on Thursd

ay mornings w
here

 about 

30 eld
erly

 people c
ome to

geth
er t

o intera
ct, 

play
 gam

es l
ike bingo and discu

ss a
gein

g 

issu
es. 

FSC sta
ff a

lso conduct a
t le

ast 
three

 

home visit
s a 

day to rea
ch out to

 eld
erly

 people 

and res
idents w

ho are
 weak

 and unable t
o visit

 

the ce
ntre 

or at
ten

d community act
ivitie

s.

 The ce
ntre 

also
 welco

mes v
olunteer

s fo
r 

some of its
 act

ivitie
s, a

nd rea
ches o

ut to
 

sch
ools a

nd church
es. 

For ex
am

ple, 
it 

organised
 a C

hrist
mas f

am
ily and gam

es d
ay 

last
 year

 in partn
ersh

ip with a C
hrist

ian
 

community chapel.

 @27FSC is l
ooking for volunteer

s to
 help

 in 

acti
vitie

s fo
r ch

ildren
, fa

milie
s an

d the el
derly

. 

It tr
ies 

to match
 volunteer

s to
 an are

a w
here

 

they can
 ser

ve best,
 and will p

rovide basic
 

trai
ning for th

ose w
ho come fo

rward
 to help

.

 The ce
ntre 

also
 need

s donatio
ns to

 support 

the poor fa
milie

s it 
help

s. I
t ca

n cost m
ore t

han 

$100 to buy a m
onth’s s

upply of ric
e, c

ooking 

oil, c
anned food and milk powder f

or a 
fam

ily 

of fo
ur.

 You can
 rea

ch @27FSC at 

contact
@27fsc.

org.sg or ca
ll 6

2708327.

To fi
nd o

ut t
he n

eed
s of

 res
iden

ts a
nd h

elp 
tho

se w
ho c

ann
ot l

eav
e 

thei
r flats,

 FSC sta
ff  c

ond
uct 

at l
eas

t th
ree 

hom
e visits

 eac
h da

y to 

rea
ch o

ut t
o th

e el
der

ly and
 tho

se t
oo  

weak
 or 

una
ble 

to v
isit 

the 

cen
tre 

and
 att

end
 com

munit
y act

ivities
.

Marine Parade FSC spins 

off a
 branch, @

27FSC, to
 

help needy residents. I
t 

needs volunteers a
nd 

donations to
 support i

ts 

services to
 the poor.

The
 sta

ff o
f @

27FSC run
 a w

eek
ly out

rea
ch p

rog
ram

me, b
ring

ing 

tog
ethe

r ab
out

 30 eld
erly

 peo
ple 

to i
nter

act,
 pla

y gam
es l

ike bi
ngo

 

and
 dis

cuss
 age

ing 
issu

es. 
The

 FSC als
o pr

ovides
 em

erg
enc

y foo
d 

sup
plie

s to
 fam

ilies
 in n

eed
.

Have 
you

 sig
ned up ye

t? 

Satu
rday

 1 Sep
tem

ber 
2012, 8.30am to 

5pm

Cath
olic 

Junior C
olleg

e Perfo
rming Arts C

entre

Themed “
Partn

erin
g Th

e Poor, 
Livin

g Our Fa
ith”, th

e 

bien
nial c

onfere
nce o

ffers
 a p

latfo
rm to e

xamine so
cial 

and ec
onomic iss

ues th
rough our Ca

tholic 
lens an

d th
e 

Gospe
l. It 

aim
s to 

shape 
a m

ore 
proa

ctive
 and 

part
icipa

tory
 Church in rea

ching ou
t to 

the po
or. 

Join
 us for

 in-dep
th disc

ussion
s on

 the underl
ying iss

ues 

facin
g th

e po
or, p

erso
nal an

d th
eolo

gica
l refl

ectio
ns on

 

what it
 means to 

be p
artn

erin
g th

e po
or a

nd pr
opos

als 

for s
ustain

able
 solu

tions.

Make th
is yo

ur cal
l to a

ction
! 

Pick up a 
regi

strat
ion form

 from
 you

r pa
rish offi

ce o
r 

visit
 www.cari

tas-s
ingapo

re.o
rg

TheThe

SSocial
ocial

MMission 

ission 

CConfer
onference

ence

     
     

     
  2

012

  Giving to  the Poor

Livi
ng O

ur F
aith

Pa
rt
ne

rin
g

 

 Come reflect, 

share and be inspired 

to help shape 

a more participatory Church.

 REGISTER NOW!

 Lim
ited to 400 participants o

nly

Pick u
p a re

gistr
atio

n fo
rm fro

m yo
ur Parish

 O
ffic

e 

or vi
sit 

www.carita
s-s

ingapore.org

WHEN

 Satu
rday

1 S
ept

em
ber 

2012

8.30 am
 to

 5.00pm

WHERE

Cath
olic

 Juni
or C

olle
ge

 Pe
rfo

rming
 Arts

 Cent
re

 12
9 W

hitle
y R

oad

Sing
apo

re 
297822

 WHO
    

Those
 int

ere
ste

d in 

     
the C

ath
olic

 Soci
al 

     
   T

eac
hing

 an
d/or

 

     
     

    a
re 

eng
age

d in 
   

     
     

     
 so

cia
l m

issi
on 

work

Organised by:

Some think there will be no life after their disability,that they will have to stay at home. They feel bad for themselves and their family, that they are dragging other people down. To be able to come back and be a meaningful contributor to society is very rewarding. We want to see more of this. We want to give them more self-respect. We want to rehabilitate them, retrain them and reintroduce them into the workforce.
– ABLE founding chairman Raymundo YuJ

A ray of hopefor the disabled 
 Mr Jun Arjuna Junit, 28, could not walk for a year-and-a-half after an accident, but now gets around with the aid of a walking frame. “AJ” as he is known, has to take taxis, heavily subsidised by ABLE, from his home in Pasir Ris to classes at the Whampoa centre.  He said that since becoming disabled, he has learnt to take things one day at a time. “I don’t think much about the future, whereas before, I would think about buying a house, or buying a car,” he said. One thing he does think about is how to get a job in architectural design. Mr Yu, who is chairman of Threadneedle Investments, used to be chairman of Merrill Lynch, Asia Pacific. Perhaps unsurprisingly, his approach in his work with ABLE seems to be one of corporate efficiency: ABLE, which has been in operation for about two years, has been able to draw on the expertise and physiotherapy and transportation equipment available at HWA, which has been on the charity scene for about 46 years.  Mr Yu gives a lot of credit to his “active and fresh” board and staff. He says he has also been able to leverage on working with partners he knows, including reputable names in local industry such as BreadTalk and the top-end Iggy’s restaurant. His son, Russell, is a partner at Iggy’s, where ABLE will hold a $3,800-per-head fundraising dinner cum wine auction on Sept 26, with the meal prepared by top chefs from Modena in Italy, and Kyoto in Japan. This event follows a similar dinner at Iggy’s last year.  ABLE, which serves people of all faiths, has more in store. In the pipeline are plans for social enterprises, for example, by starting off with offering book-keeping services for fellow member organisations of Caritas Singapore, as well as a proposed Respite Centre for people with Muscular Dystrophy and their care-givers, who also need rest from their care-giving responsibilities.  It is also gathering information to set up a resource centre to help people who become physically challenged, or whose relatives are in this situation, said Mr Yu. It can be traumatising to see elderly family members struggle with disability, and people have to  learn whether to install rails in bathrooms or bars to help them move around the house, he said. The general perception of physically challenged persons has to change in society, amid considerations of whether workplaces are properly set up with them in mind, said Mr Yu. Those who are physically challenged should feel they are part of society, rather than on its fringes, he added. 

ABLE provides rehabilitation and training in a range of courses including draughtsmanship, domestic skills and office administration. It also provides 

counselling and transport jointly with the Handicaps Welfare Association.

In the pipeline for ABLE are plans for social enterprises as well as a proposed Respite Centre for people with Muscular Dystrophy and their 

care-givers, who also need rest from their care-giving responsibilities

ESSIE Ong Chia Kee was 37 years old and seven months’ pregnant when she had a stroke which left her physically impaired. She could no longer work as an electronic production operator as she needed to check computer hard disks among other things. Today, more than two years later, she has regained most of her mobility and some of the nearly 20kg she lost after the stroke.  Ms Ong is taking a course in draughtsmanship run by the charity, Abilities Beyond Limitations and Expectations (ABLE). She says she is still young and hopes the training will help her land a full-time job with an architectural firm, so she can contribute to her household. She is married to a technician, and their son is now two years old. Most of the beneficiaries at ABLE, a member organisation of Caritas Singapore, are people like Ms Ong, who have become physically challenged as a result of an accident or illness. 
 “Some think there will be no life after their disability, that they will have to stay at home. They feel bad for themselves and for their family, that they are dragging other people down. To be able to come back and be a meaningful contributor to society is very rewarding. We want to see more of this,” said ABLE’s founding chairman Raymundo Yu. “We want to give them more self-respect. We want to rehabilitate them, retrain them and reintroduce them into the workforce.” This “beginning-to-end solution” - from rehabilitation to introducing job-seekers to employers, and follow-up checks with ABLE clients who have accepted jobs - is a concept Mr Yu came up with after 30 years of experience in volunteer work. Originally from the Philippines and now a Singapore citizen, he used to be a volunteer at a Manila orphanage run by the Society of St Vincent de Paul, where the children were trained to be tailors, barbers and bakers. He also helped the Little Sisters of the Poor in serving senior citizens and helping with their rehabilitation. ABLE currently has about 172 clients or beneficiaries, and has placed 60 individuals in jobs this year, said Mr Gene Lee, its executive director. The clients are aged between 18 and 62. 

 Besides rehabilitation and training in a range of courses including draughtsmanship, domestic skills and office administration, ABLE also provides counselling and transport jointly with the Handicaps Welfare Association (HWA). The two organisations agreed in November 2010 to establish the Centre for the Physically Challenged at HWA’s  Whampoa premises.

How can I make a donation? Cheque donations should bemade payable to ‘ABLE Limited’. (Tax-deductible receiptare given for donationsof $50 and above)

How can I volunteer?Volunteers can lend their talents and professional skillsin the areas of physiotherapy, event coordination,graphic and web design and fundraising. If you would like to be a volunteer, please email enquiries@able-sg.org 

How You Can Help ABLE

T

Can you imagine 

working 12 hours a 

day, with no day off? 

Foreign Domestic Workers Day was celebrated on Dec 4

to pay tribute to more than 200,000 women for their 

contributions to our society. Organised by the Foreign 

Domestic Worker Association for Skills Training (FAST)

and non-governmental organisations like the Archdiocesan 

Commission for the Pastoral Care of Migrants & Itinerant 

People (ACMI), the event was held at the Singapore 

Polytechnic and saw several thousand maids and their 

employers celebrating together. In this article, ACMI gives 

Catholic employers of maids some food for thought. 

 The dignity of work also implies the 

need to ensure that all people have working 

conditions worthy of the children of God. 

 Good working conditions are of course 

subjective so we decided to find out what 

would be important to maids in Singapore. 

The maids who took part in the ACMI 

survey were given a list and asked to tick 

the three issues most important to them. 

This is how they ranked the items on the 

list:
1.  Be allowed to attend training classes.

2.  Be free to contact my family and friends.

3.  Have enough sleep daily.

4.  Have proper meals daily.

5.  Have time for prayer.

6.  Have my own mobile phone.

7.  Have a weekly day off.

8.  Higher salary.

9.   Access to the Internet after work.

10.Be allowed to keep my passport and 

     bank passbook.

Now think about yourself as a 

job-seeker. What is most 

important to you when you 

are looking for a job? 

Most people would say more pay, a good 

bonus package, and benefits that include 

annual leave or overtime allowances. Some 

seek out employers who promote a 

work-life balance, while others hope for 

friendly bosses and colleagues. Finally, you 

would check out the advancement 

prospects. 
 Compare your priorities with what 

matters most to FDWs in Singapore. 

 Higher salary is ranked near the bottom 

of their list. There are no laws that entitle 

FDWs to bonuses, annual leave, overtime 

pay or time off. 

 Most cannot choose who they work for, 

and are likely to end up with people of a 

completely alien culture and religion than 

their own. Some maids cannot even 

communicate properly with their employ -

ers.  And maids have no prospects of 

promotion, even though they may be keen 

to better themselves through skills training. 

 Most of the items on the list are so basic 

that most of us take them for granted in our 

own jobs.How can we as Catholic 

employers of maids address 

these issues? 

We can take into account the two core 

principles of the Church’s social teachings,

emphasising the dignity of the human 

person and the dignity of work. 

    Based on this and ACMI’s experience, 

there are five areas we can work on to 

help achieve dignity for the foreign maids 

in our homes:
1. Communication and Respect: Respect 

    begets respect, and communication is  

    often the first step towards establishing   

    this. We need to respect differing cultures,  

    work, ethics, religions and values. 

2. Meals and Accommodation: Having 

    sufficient food and adequate accommoda    -

    tion are a basic part of decent working 

    conditions. As employers we must ensure 

    that these basic needs are met.

3. Rest: All workers need their daily rest as well   

    as regular days off. We should not expect  

    our FDWs to work 24 hours a day, seven  

    days a week. Having adequate rest can help 

    enhance their work and mental well-being.

4. Compensation: Getting paid fairly and 

    on time is an expectation of every worker. 

    It is the basic duty of all employers to 

    ensure this is done.

5. Growth and Development: As 

    employers, we can help to motivate our 

    FDWs by supporting their efforts to learn 

    and improve their skills. This will encour    -

    age them to do their jobs well and strive  

    to progress.

Try putting yourself in the shoes of these women. Do you think you could share your room with a  

stranger, sleep less than seven hours a day, or work while sick? As Catholic employers, we can make 

a difference. 

Like all of us who work, 

maids need time out from 

their jobs to meet their 

friends, socialise and get 

a break from the routine 

of cleaning, cooking, 

washing and ironing.

O MARK Foreign Domestic 

Workers Day, ACMI wanted to learn 

more about the living conditions and 

needs of foreign maids in Singapore.

 It surveyed 299 FDWs attending courses 

at the ACMI  Training Centre in Novem-

ber. From the 231 valid results, these were 

the top line results: 
 91 per cent are aged 20 to 40.

 The majority are Indonesian (40 per   

cent) and Filipino (39 per cent) and 15  

per cent were from Myanmar.

 64 per cent are single.

 80 per cent have worked in Singapore 

only. 84 per cent earn between $300 and $500 

a month.
 34 per cent have a day off once a week, 

46 per cent have a day off twice a 

month, 13 per cent once a month and 6 

per cent have no day off.

 They work an average of 12.3 hours a 

day. 93 per cent have three meals a day.

 93 per cent sleep seven to eight hours a 

day. 85 per cent have their own room. 

 84 per cent can rest if they are sick.

 97 per cent of employers pay for the 

maids’ medical fees.

Try putting yourself in the shoes of these 

women. Can you imagine working 12-hour 

shifts, without enough food to eat, for only 

a few hundred dollars per month and no 

days off? 
 Do you think you could share your room 

with a total stranger and sleep less than 

seven hours a day? 

 What if you had to work while sick? 

Few Singaporeans in their right minds 

would accept such working conditions yet 

there are thousands of  FDWs working 

here who do. As a Catholic employer how 

do you treat your maid?

Do you practise what Jesus preaches in 

Luke 6:31: “Do to others as you would 

have them do to you”?

 Human beings should never be treated 

only as machines to complete a job or task. 

 Instead, the well-being of each person 

should be our ultimate goal. Every human 

being has equal dignity with one another 

and no person is of greater or less impor -

tance than others. 

 Work in any form has an intrinsic 

dignity as well because it comes from the 

hands of humans who are special in the 

eyes of God. 
 God has given us a role in co-creating 

the world and making it a better place. So 

whatever the work we do, whether 

cleaning a house or cleansing a soul, we 

can take pride in it as it promotes human 

development. 

R

New centre to help

Telok Blangah families 

esidents in Telok Blangah can look 

forward to more community services 

and activities with the arrival of a new 

family service centre (FSC) at Block 27, Telok 

Blangah Way.

 Simply named @27FSC, it has been 

providing casework management, counselling 

and outreach programmes through home visits, 

social activities and providing food rations and 

financial assistance to needy families in 

difficulty. 

 Now that its new premises are ready, 

@27FSC hopes to roll out more services, such 

as programmes for families with young 

children, focusing on nutrition, life skills and 

family bonding. 

 The centre is a branch of Marine Parade FSC 

which has helped residents in this area for about 

10 years. @27FSC Centre Manager Annie Chia, 

who previously worked at Marine Parade FSC, 

said it was the right time to expand.

 The new centre fills a gap in social services 

coverage for about 117 Housing Board blocks 

in the Telok Blangah area. Besides its Marine 

Parade parent office, @27FSC is also 

supported by Caritas Singapore, Catholic 

Welfare Services and the Brothers of St 

Gabriel.
 The FSC has six staff and so far has served 

about 250 households. With donations of food 

supplies from individuals and groups such as 

the Christian Community Chapel, the FSC 

supports about 80 families with supplies such 

as milk powder, cooking oil and rice. Such 

emergency supplies are critical for low-income 

families waiting to receive financial aid, said 

Ms Chia.
 @27FSC holds a weekly outreach 

programme on Thursday mornings where about 

30 elderly people come together to interact, 

play games like bingo and discuss ageing 

issues. FSC staff also conduct at least three 

home visits a day to reach out to elderly people 

and residents who are weak and unable to visit 

the centre or attend community activities.

 The centre also welcomes volunteers for 

some of its activities, and reaches out to 

schools and churches. For example, it 

organised a Christmas family and games day 

last year in partnership with a Christian 

community chapel.

 @27FSC is looking for volunteers to help in 

activities for children, families and the elderly. 

It tries to match volunteers to an area where 

they can serve best, and will provide basic 

training for those who come forward to help.

 The centre also needs donations to support 

the poor families it helps. It can cost more than 

$100 to buy a month’s supply of rice, cooking 

oil, canned food and milk powder for a family 

of four.
 You can reach @27FSC at 

contact@27fsc.org.sg or call 62708327. To find out the needs of residents and help those who cannot leave 

their flats, FSC staff  conduct at least three home visits each day to 

reach out to the elderly and those too  weak or unable to visit the 

centre and attend community activities.

Marine Parade FSC spins 

off a branch, @27FSC, to 

help needy residents. It 

needs volunteers and 

donations to support its 

services to the poor.

The staff of @27FSC run a weekly outreach programme, bringing 

together about 30 elderly people to interact, play games like bingo 

and discuss ageing issues. The FSC also provides emergency food 

supplies to families in need.

Have you signed up yet? 

Saturday 1 September 2012, 8.30am to 5pm

Catholic Junior College Performing Arts Centre

Themed “Partnering The Poor, Living Our Faith”, the 

biennial conference offers a platform to examine social 

and economic issues through our Catholic lens and the 

Gospel. It aims to shape a more proactive and 

participatory Church in reaching out to the poor. 

Join us for in-depth discussions on the underlying issues 

facing the poor, personal and theological reflections on 

what it means to be partnering the poor and proposals 

for sustainable solutions.

Make this your call to action! 

Pick up a registration form from your parish office or 

visit www.caritas-singapore.org
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                 2012

  Giving to  the Poor

Living Our Faith

Partnering

 
 Come reflect, 

share and be inspired 

to help shape 

a more participatory Church.

 REGISTER NOW!

 Limited to 400 participants only

Pick up a registration form from your Parish Office 

or visit www.caritas-singapore.org

WHEN Saturday

1 September 2012

8.30 am to 5.00pmWHERE

Catholic Junior College

 Performing Arts Centre

 129 W
hitley Road

Singapore 297822
 WHO    

Those interested in 

     the Catholic Social 

        Teaching and/or 

              are engaged in    

                social mission work

Organised by:

CASUAL observer might 
not associate Boys’ Town, 

best-known as a home for 

troubled youths, with a rigorous 

emphasis on education. 
 But Dr Roland Yeow, its deputy 

director, says:  “Our promise is, 

you’ll get an education... we’re 

hopeful these kids can go back to 

school to be successful.”
 Dr Yeow is himself an example 

of this ethos. A former secondary 

school drop-out, he spent two 

years at Boys’ Town. Now 35, he 

returned to work there eight years 

ago, after obtaining his doctorate 

in organisational management.

 Boys’ Town, a charitable 

institution founded by the Brothers 

of St Gabriel in 1948, is a member 

organisation of Caritas Singapore. 

 Apart from working closely 

with schools like Assumption 

English School and Assumption 

Pathway School, Boys’ Town has 

its own alternative schooling 

scheme.  This has seen 100 per cent 

success in terms of returning boys 

who are at risk to the education 

system, said Boys’ Town’s 

executive director Irene Loi. Since 

2009 the programme has taken on 

nearly 40 such students and some 

have turned around dramatically to 

become top students in the schools 

they returned to, said Ms Loi.

 There are now about 50 boys in 

the residential home, but the 

organisation serves about 1,400 in 

total through wide-ranging 

services which include street 

outreach schemes, school and 

community-based programmes, 

counselling and working with 

families. The home takes in boys aged 

between 11 and 18 who usually 

have experienced neglect or abuse, 

or have behavioural or 
learning-related problems. Many 

come from financially 
disadvantaged families and just 

over half are from single-parent 

homes. Some boys’ parents are 

missing or unable to care for them; 

others come from broken homes. 

 For some families, placing a 

 Discipline is important at Boys’ 

Town. Among the most effective 

means of discipline, Ms Loi said, 

is withdrawing privileges such as 

home visits or the use of the 

computer. The institution has a 

“very low tolerance of bullying”, 

she said, recalling how one boy 

with severe anger management 

issues, who had threatened the 

staff and other residents, was 

asked to leave. Most boys stay on average two 

to three years, said Dr Yeow. “We 

have been seeing kids who do not 

stay long enough, for example, the 

parents take them out of Boys’ 

Town after three months. Kids like 

that generally go back to old 

problems, he said. 
 Problems such as abuse, low 

self-esteem, trauma and struggling 

to cope at school and at home take 

time to resolve.  Counselling and therapy help, 

and these can take unconventional 

forms. A few years ago, Ms Loi, 

who is trained in a form of therapy 

called expressive therapy, was 

counselling a teenager in Boys’ 

Town’s school outreach 
programme. His parents had found 

him rebellious and argumentative, 

and his grades were borderline. 

 Expressive therapy, using 

creative art and symbols that can 

take the form of figurines, images 

or masks, helped the boy 
articulate his emotions. He kept 

looking at the shelves where the 

symbols and figurines were 

displayed during her session with 

him, Ms Loi recounted. Finally  

he took a figurine from the shelf   

- it was a bust of the superhero 

Spider-man. The 15-year-old looked at the 

Spider-man head in his grasp and 

suddenly broke down and cried. 

“I’m exactly like this - I’m forever 

in a mask, I can never be myself, 

Ms Loi recalled him saying. “My

never allow me to be in anything

but a mask.” Working with the families of 

youths at risk is crucial.
 A research paper, co-authored 

by Dr Yeow and published in 

August 2011, surveyed 468 young 

people of similar profiles, 
comparing the attitudes of youths 

in residential care and those not in 

residential care. As most of the youth in 

residential settings tended to be 

from dysfunctional family 

backgrounds, it was assumed that 

those living with their families 

would have a better perception of 

family bonding. Instead, the study found that 

those in residential care had a 

better perception of their families 

compared to those living at home. 

Dr Yeow noted those in residential 

care longed to return to live with 

their loved ones, regardless of 

their complicated family 
situations.  “An emphasis on family 

integration needs careful planning 

and preparation,” he said.

          

boy in residential care provides a 

break to both parties, said Dr 

Yeow. “Over time, they appreciate 

the process and both sides can 

focus on their own healing 

process,” he said. “Initially, our  

kids’ motivation to learn is very   

low,over two or three years, when  

they are about to graduate from  

Boys’ Town, they want to learn and  

start to appreciate learning.” 

 Ms Loi said that sending a boy 

to Boys’ Town is not about taking 

him away from society, but 

putting him in a community 

where he can grow. 
  “When you live in a community, 

you have to face yourself. You 

have to ask yourself, for example, 

how do I manage all these 

relationships, without resorting to 

violence?” she said. 

A

The mission of Boys’ Town is to work especially with youth at risk 

between the ages of 11 and 18, to provide holistic services for 

them and their families so that they can become socially 

integrated, responsible and contributing members of society. 

 Boys’ Town is a member of Caritas Singapore and the National 

Council of Social Services.
 Boys’ Town invites individuals and organisations with a passion 

for the challenges of youth to partner us in our work by: 

Donating to our cause. 
 To make a donation, you can:

 a) Go online and make a donation via credit card at    

   http://www.sggives.org/boystown

 b) Make a crossed cheque payable to Boys‘ Town. Please provide 

   your name, NRIC  or UEN number (for tax exemption),

   address and contact number, and send to:

   Boys’ Town, Bukit Panjang PO Box 27,

   Singapore 916801. 
Becoming a volunteer.

 To find out more about Boys’ Town and how you can help, visit our 

website at http://www.boystown.org.sg, or contact us at 6769 1618 or 

email us at info@boystown.org.sg.

ABOUT BOYS’ TOWN

Initially, our kids’ motivation to learn is very

low, but over two or three years, when they are 

about to graduate from Boys’ Town, they want to 

learn and start to appreciate learning.

Giving boys at risk
a chance to shine

The programme at Boys’ Town is geared to bring out the best 

in boys from disadvantaged or troubled backgrounds.

Sending a child to Boys’ Town is not about taking him 

away from society,  but putting him in a community 

where he can grow, says executive director Irene Loi 

(above with some of the boys). “When you live in a 

community, you have to face yourself. You have to ask 

yourself, for example, how do I manage all these 

relationships, without resorting to violence?”

– Dr Roland Yeow, deputy director of Boys’ Town and a former resident himself.
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A STRONGER
CARITAS NETWORK
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The late Pope John Paul II points out 
that solidarity is not about feeling 
sorry for others. Instead, it is “a 
firm and persevering determination 
to commit oneself to the common 
good; that is to say, to the good of all 
and of each individual, because we 
are all really responsible for all.

~ Sollicitudo Rei Socialis, 38 ~ 

Strengthen organisational 
structures
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We seek to synergise resources across our many 
Catholic social mission groups, and enhance 

service delivery through collaboration. We encourage 
our affiliate member organisations to work together. 

We have developed a social service guidebook and 
media guide as common resources for our affiliate 
member organisations. Sharing sessions were held to 
brief our member organisations on the use of these 
guidebooks. In addition, special media training was 
provided to the executive directors of our affiliate 
member organisations such as ACMI, Infant Jesus 

The social mission of the Church focuses on the 
outreach to the poor and those in need in the 

broader community, regardless of race, religion or 
nationality.

THE BROADER COMMUNITY

Helping the poor and 
destitute

Caring for the terminally ill Nurturing Children and 
Youths

Enriching Families
Reaching out to HIV/AIDS 

sufferers and their families
Providing medical 

assistance for people in 
need

Enabling the physically 
and mentally challenged

Befriending prisoners 
and ex-prisoners

Befriending migrants and 
providing them with life 

skills

acts29

Providing overseas 
humanitarian aid and relief

Providing legal 
assistance for people in 

need

Engaging Catholics at the 
workplace to serve the 

broader community

Homes and Children’s Centres to equip them with 
the skills to deal with the media. 

The premises of Caritas Singapore are available for 
member organisations to receive mail and conduct 
meetings in the city area. Member organisations 
such as the Catholic Medical Guild, CHARIS, Catholic 
Business Network, Morning Star Community Services, 
Jesuit Refugee Service (JRS) Singapore, Marine 
Parade Family Service Centre (MPFSC), acts29 and 
Faith and Light Community have made good use of 
these facilities.

Affiliate member organisations of Caritas Singapore 
serve over 50,000 beneficiaries in various areas of 
needs:
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Elderly outreach provided by @27FSC, a community project of 
MPFSC and CWS.

ACMI volunteers distribute provisions and food supplies to 
migrant workers under its Bread Basket programme.

ABLE partners the Handicaps Welfare Association to operate a 
centre for the physically challenged.

Morning Star Community Services’ after-school service provides 
care and guidance for families with primary school-going 
children during their off-school hours. 

JRS volunteers with refugees from Ranong Province in Southern 
Thailand. 

CHARIS volunteers on a house-building mission in Jogyarkarta 
in Indonesia.
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The following are Catholic organisations under the umbrella of Caritas Singapore which are involved in charity 
and community work. There are 23 such organisations and their details and website links can be found at the 

website of Caritas Singapore. 

Abilities Beyond Limitations and Expectations 
(ABLE)
ABLE seeks to enable and empower the physically 
challenged to live productive, meaningful and 
independent lives, and be full contributors to the 
community. ABLE’s first initiative was a collaboration 
with the Handicaps Welfare Association to set up a 
centre for the physically challenged.

acts29
acts29 is a youth organisation of the Catholic Church 
which commits itself to evangelisation through mission 
and dialogue. Among its work, acts29 serve the poor 
in the “Payatas Dumpsite” of Quezon City, Philippines. 

Archdiocesan Commission for the Pastoral Care of 
Migrants and Itinerant People (ACMI)
ACMI’s befrienders help foreign workers in need, 
making hospital visits, providing food, shelter and 
legal aid. Its Bread Basket programme provides food 
supplies and toiletries to foreign workers, especially 
construction workers. ACMI also runs training courses 
to teach migrant workers basic skills.

Assisi Hospice
Assisi Hospice provides integrated high quality palliative 
care to in-patient, home care and day care for children, 
adults and paediatric cancer patients as well as to other 
patients with palliative care needs.

Boys’ Town Singapore
Boys’ Town Singapore is dedicated to providing 
guidance, shelter, education, vocational training and 
practical living skills to youths who primarily come from 
large, troubled, single-parent and financially needy 
families.

Canossaville Children’s Home
The Canossian Sisters care for young children and 
adolescents who are at risk, who lack parental care or 
family support. The home houses up to 30 children.  
In addition, the sisters run a Student Care Centre for 
children from single-parent poor families and others.

Caritas Humanitarian Aid & Relief Initiatives, 
Singapore (CHARIS)
CHARIS is the Catholic Church’s umbrella body for 
overseas humanitarian aid. It is set up to coordinate the 
Archdiocesan response to disasters and humanitarian 
needs in fulfilment of the Church’s social mission.

Catholic AIDS Response Effort (CARE) 
CARE volunteers help AIDS patients and their families. 
The team provides befriending, counselling and support 
through various programmes, as well as shelter to those 
with nowhere to go.

Catholic Business Network (CBN)
CBN was set up with the mission to bring together 
Catholic business owners and Catholic professionals 
and executives for the advancement of Catholic values 
and ethics in their work, and to serve the broader 
community.

Catholic Lawyers Guild (CLG)
The CLG provides mutual support and encouragement 
among lawyers for the sanctification of their professional 
work, as well as the provision of legal assistance to the 
Church and persons in need.

Catholic Medical Guild 
Catholic doctors come together to examine social and 
ethical issues in the light of Church teachings and also 
conduct humanitarian missions overseas together with 
other organisations.  

Catholic Nurses Guild 
This association of nurses promotes professional and 
spiritual growth of its members, who also participate 
in many Church activities to help the sick, handicapped 
and elderly. 

Catholic Welfare Services (CWS)
CWS, the backbone of the Church’s charity efforts since 
1959, conducts a number of projects to help the poor, 
destitute and those in need. It runs six homes for the 
aged, namely: 
• Villa Francis Home  • St Joseph’s Home 
• St Theresa’s Home  • St Vincent Home 
• Gift of Love Home  • Good Shepherd Centre 
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Christian Family and Social Movement (CFSM)
In working towards building good Christian families, 
CFSM assists all family members to live and fulfil their 
various roles in the family, work place, community and 
nation. 

CLARITY Singapore Limited 
CLARITY aims to provide rehabilitation, support and 
essential training to help people from low- to middle-
income families recover from and manage their 
psychiatric illnesses, so that they can find sustainable 
and meaningful livelihood. 

Faith and Light Community (FLC)
FLC reaches out to intellectually disabled people and 
their families to help them realise that everyone is a gift 
from God.

Family Life Society (FLS)
The Society’s focus is on promoting understanding and 
respect for family and family life.  FLS is active in pro-
life, parenting and school family education, runs hotline 
and counselling for people in crises. FLS has several 
established affiliate programmes that provide the full 
spectrum of support in the family life cycle: 
• Beginning Experience 
• Choice 
• Couple Empowerment Programme 
• Couples for Christ 
• Engaged Encounter 
• Marriage Encounter 
• Marriage Preparation Course 
• Natural Family Planning 
• Pregnancy Crisis Service 
• Retrouvaille  

Infant Jesus Homes and Children’s Centres (IJHCC) 
IJHCC welcomes children from low-income families 
who need protection, face emotional crises or are 
otherwise at risk. Its residents are engaged in social, 
physical and academic activities in an environment 
where they can be nurtured and cared for. It also runs 
programmes and services that include residential care, 
out-of-school care, learning support, community home 
and crisis shelter.

Jesuit Refugee Service (JRS) Singapore 
JRS is an international Catholic organisation whose 
mission is to accompany, serve and advocate for 
refugees and forcibly displaced people. JRS Singapore 
works with parishes to raise awareness about the 
plight of refugees and supports the work of other 
JRS organisations in the Asia Pacific and South Asian 
regions. 

Marine Parade Family Service Centre (MPFSC)
MPFSC runs a comprehensive range of social services 
helping individuals to realise their own potential; 
empower families to increase their functionality; and 
nurture the community to strengthen its bonds, in 
the East Coast area. It also runs cyber-counselling for 
youth, and a Good Life at South East programme which 
promotes productive ageing among the elderly.

Morning Star Community Services (MSCS)
MSCS aims to strengthen and enrich family life through 
education programmes, workshops and camps for 
parents and children. It runs school-based social work 
programmes, and various other counselling, outreach 
and support services.

Roman Catholic Prison Ministry (RCPM)
RCPM offers befriending and spiritual support services 
for prisoners and their families during the incarceration 
as well as their after-care needs.  It provides counselling 
and fellowship services that help promote their human 
and spiritual development. 

Society of St Vincent de Paul (SSVP)
One of the best-known Catholic charities, SSVP uses 
monthly collections from all churches to provide direct 
help to the poor and under-privileged of all religions 
for the past 60 years. It provides monetary assistance 
and food rations to those in need and also befriending 
services.
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Members Date of 
Appointment 

Committees Other Information

1 George Lim 
(Chairman wef 
January 2011)

September 
2006

 – Chairman, Executive 
Committee

 – Nomination Committee

 – Chairman, 
Communications 
Committee

 – Agape Village Steering 
Committee

 – Deputy Chairman of Caritas Singapore from 
September 2006 to 31 December 2010

 – Volunteer, Jesuit Refugee Service Singapore, an 
affiliate member of Caritas Singapore

 – Senior Legal Counsel and Partner in Wee Tay & 
Lim LLP

2 Laurence Lien 
(Deputy Chairman 
wef January 2011)

September 
2006

 – Chairman, Advocacy 
Committee

 – Executive Committee

 – Chief Executive Officer, National Volunteer and 
Philanthropy Centre

3 Stephen Chu January 2011  – Chairman, Fundraising 
Committee

 – Consultant, Asia Resource Corp Pte Ltd

4 Jane Foo January 2011  – Chairman, Audit 
Committee 

 – Membership Committee

 – Director, Compliance and Ethics, American 
Express International Inc

5 Paul Foo September 
2006

 – Chairman, Volunteers 
and Parishes Committee 

 – Nomination Committee 

 – President, Society of St Vincent de Paul, an 
affiliate member of Caritas Singapore

 – Sole Proprietor, MM Engineering Consultant

6 Rev Fr Patrick Goh September 
2006

 – Executive Committee 

 – Advocacy Committee 

 – Chancellor, Singapore Catholic Archdiocese 

 – Parish Priest, Church of the Holy Family

7 Kwek Mean Luck September 
2006

 – Chairman, Community 
Strategy Committee  

 – Deputy Secretary (Development, Public Service 
Division) of the Prime Minister’s Office 

 – CEO and Dean, Public Service College

8 Sr Maria Lau, IJS September 
2006

 – Chairman, Formation 
Committee 

 – Provincial, Infant Jesus Sisters (up to 17 March 
2012)

 – President, Inter-Religious Organisation

 – Council Member, Archdiocesan Commission 
for Catholic Schools

 – Constitutional Head, Infant Jesus Homes and 
Children’s Centres, an affiliate member of 
Caritas Singapore 

Left to right: 
Rev Monsignor Eugene Vaz, Friar John-Paul Tan, OFM, Rev Fr Patrick Goh, George Lim (Chairman), Kwek Mean Luck, Angela Lee, Jane Foo, Linda Low,
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Members Date of 

Appointment 
Committees Other Information

9 Angela Lee January 2011  – Formation Committee  – Volunteer, Jesuit Refugee Service Singapore, an 
affiliate member of Caritas Singapore 

 – Homemaker

10 Wendy Louis September 
2006

 – Formation Committee  – Executive Director, Archdiocesan Commission 
for Catholic Schools 

 – Executive Secretary, Federation of Asian 
Bishops’ Conferences, Office of Laity and 
Women’s Desk

11 Linda Low January 2009  – Membership Committee  – Board Member, HopeHome Limited 

 – Manager, Pet Shop Enterprise

12 Anthony Soo January 2011  – Chairman, Membership 
Committee 

 – Board Member, CARE, an affiliate member of 
Caritas Singapore

 – ViF Global Development Manager, ExxonMobil 
Chemical Asia Pacific

13 Friar John-Paul 
Tan, OFM

January 2011  – Chairman, Young Adults 
Committee

 – Parish Priest, Church of St Mary of the Angels

14 Thomas Teo January 2011  – Chairman, Finance and 
Grants Committee 

 – Board Member, CHARIS, an affiliate member of 
Caritas Singapore 

 – Chief Financial Officer, GK Goh Holdings 
Limited 

15 Rev Monsignor 
Eugene Vaz

October 2006  – Chairman, Nomination 
Committee 

 – Formation Committee

 – Board Member, CHARIS, an affiliate member of 
Caritas Singapore 

 – Vicar General, Singapore Catholic Archdiocese

Wendy Louis, Sr Maria Lau IJS, Anthony Soo, Paul Foo, Thomas Teo, Laurence Lien (Deputy Chairman), Stephen Chu
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AGAPE FUND TRUSTEES

Members Date of 
Appointment

Other Information

1 J Y Pillay (Chairman wef 
November 2006)

November 2006  – Chairman, Council of Presidential Advisers of the Republic of 
Singapore

 – Chairman, Tiger Airways Holdings Limited

2 Margaret Lien November 2006  – Chairman, Lien Ying Chow Pte Ltd
 – Governor Emeritus, Lien Foundation

3 George Lim November 2006  – Chairman, Caritas Singapore 

4 Willie Cheng November 2006  – Chairman,  CHARIS 
 – Member, Archdiocesan Land and Properties Singapore

5 Dr Lim Cheok Peng August 2007  – Vice-Chairman, Parkway Pantai Holdings Ltd

6 Frank Wong September 2007  – Vice Chairman, Asia Philanthropic Ventures Pte Ltd
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Front Row: Margaret Lien, J Y Pillay, George Lim
Back Row: Dr Lim Cheok Peng, Frank Wong, Willie Cheng
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COMMITTEES 

Audit Committee

Chair Jane Foo

Members Yvonne Chu

Patrick Goh

Patricia Lim

Chris Woo

Executive Committee

Chair George Lim

Members Rev Fr Patrick 
Goh

Laurence Lien

Board Infrastructure Committees

Board Programme Committees

Nomination Committee

Chair Rev Monsignor 
Eugene Vaz

Members George Lim

Paul Foo

Advocacy Committee

Chair Laurence Lien

Members Robert Conceicao

Karen Goh

Mark Goh

Rev Fr Patrick Goh

Patrick Goh

Jeremy Khoo

Lydia Lim

Ng Bee Leng

Rev Fr Paul Staes, 
CICM

Agape Village Steering  
Committee

Chair Janet Ang

Members Theodore Chan

Teresa Ee

Kwek Mean Luck

Lai Ah Eng

Bernadette Lau

Patrick Lau

Lim Soon Hock

George Lim

David Soh

Teo Jin Lee

Andrew Thomas
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Finance and Grants 
Committee

Chair Thomas Teo

Members Thomas Goh

Edwin Lee

Juliana Ng

Joachim Toh

Belinda Young

Communications Committee

Chair George Lim

Members Robert Conceicao 
(Consultant)

Venessa Lee

Jeremy Lim

Winifred Loh

Joyce Ong

Jeanette Tan

Fundraising Committee

Chair Stephen Chu

Members Amanda Chen

Steve Gan

Agnes Ee-Goh

Peter Goh

Edmund Heng

Gene Lee

Brendan Leong

Godfrey Robert

Michael Seow

Lynda Soong

Angelia Tan

Alvin Yapp

Formation Committee

Chair Sr Maria Lau, IJS

Members Rev Fr David Garcia, 
OP

Arthur Goh

Angela Lee

Wendy Louis

Rev Monsignor 
Eugene Vaz

Community Strategy 
Committee

Chair Kwek Mean Luck

Members Vincent Chua

Karen Goh

Brenda Wee

Christine Wong

Ruth Wong
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CBN Golf for Charity 2012 
Organising Committee

Chair Peter Goh

Members Willie Cheng

Stephen Chu

Terrence Francisco

Vincent Kong

Godfrey Robert

Eric Teoh

Belinda Young

Terry Young

Social Mission Conference 2012 
Organising Committee

Chair Linda Low

Co-Chair Angela Lee

Members Leong Seey Seey

Emida Natalaray

Janice Pua

Francis Wong

Debbie Woodford

Iona Woodford

Board Programme Committees

Project Committees

Membership Committee

Chair Anthony Soo

Members Patrick Chua

Jane Foo

Goh Teik Poh

Sherlyn Khong

Jennifer Lim

Francis Mane

Damien Ooi

Sabina Soh

Volunteers and Parishes  
Committee

Chair Paul Foo

Members Vivian Chung

Cindy Lee

Cyril Lim

Andrew Tan

Selena Tan

William Tey

Judy Wee

Young Adults Committee

Chair Friar John-Paul Tan, 
OFM

Members Antony Ng (Mentor)

Thomas Teo (Mentor)

Jessica Huang

Park Hyun

Hannah Lee

Michelle Lee

Philene Leow

Alan Lim

Erwin Susanto

Mark Tang

Francis Tay

Down Memory Lane 5 Charity 
Show 2012 Organising  
Committee

Chair Christina Spykerman

Members Hamish Brown

Stephen Chu

Robert Conceicao

Gene Lee

Vickie Quah

Philip Seah

Michelle Soliano

Study of the Poor Committee

Chair Eugene Tan

Members James Chew

Cecilia Ee

Paul Foo

Karl Koh

Bernadette Lau

George Lim

Michael Tan

Brenda Wee
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Note: Committee listings include members who have served during the financial year.
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From left to right:

Raymond Yong (Special Projects) 

Stefanie Herman (Fundraising and Partnerships) 

Bernadette Lau (Executive Director – appointed in November 2011) 

Juliana Chua (Finance and Grants) 

Sue Anne Kuek (Communications)

Gail Ng (Formation)

Tang Lay Lee, Advocacy and Social Action (left) and 
Leong Seey Seey, Membership Development (right) 
who joined us after 30 September 2012.

EXECUTIVE TEAM
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 

Caritas Singapore Community Council Limited 
(“Caritas Singapore” or “the Council”) is 

committed to maintaining high standards of 
corporate governance.

In Singapore, best practices in governance are set 
out in the Code of Governance for Charities and 
Institutions of a Public Character (IPC) (“the Charity 
Council Code”) which was first introduced by the 
Charity Council in November 2007. The Code was 
refined in 2010 leading the Charity Council to issue 
a revised Code on 19 January 2011 to help charities 
apply the Code more effectively. 

The Code is not mandatory but charities and IPCs 
are encouraged to follow the code and explain any 
deviations from it. The Charity Council also launched 
an online Governance Evaluation Checklist designed 

to help charities and IPCs self-evaluate the extent 
they have complied with essential guidelines in the 
Charity Council Code.  

Caritas Singapore has also developed our own code 
of governance (“the Caritas Singapore Code”) 
which builds upon the Charity Council Code, setting 
out our implementation of the principles where 
appropriate and adding in the Catholic ethos. This 
is being updated to take into account refinements 
made to the Charity Council Code.  

For the purpose of this report, Caritas Singapore’s 
compliance of and explanations for any deviations 
from the Charity Council Code are provided below. 
In addition, the Governance Evaluation Checklists 
of Caritas Singapore and CSCC Agape Fund can be 
viewed on the Charity portal at www.charities.gov.sg.

Caritas Singapore’s Code of Governance Evaluation Checklist

S/N Description Code ID Response Explanation (if compliance is in progress, not 
complied or not applicable)

Board Governance

A Are there board members holding 
staff appointments.

No

1 There is a maximum limit of four 
consecutive years for the Treasurer 
position (equivalent eg Finance 
Committee Chairman).

1.1.6 Complied The Caritas Singapore Board has established a set 
of guidelines on board renewal to ensure continuity 
and appropriate mix of experience and skills. The 
tenure for the following positions is limited to a 
maximum of two consecutive terms (ie four years): 
Board Chairman, Audit Chairman, and Finance 
Committee Chairman.

2 The Board conducts regular self-
evaluation to assess its performance 
and effectiveness.

1.1.10 Complied The Caritas Singapore Board did a written self-
evaluation survey and the comments were collated 
& circulated to the Board for information.

3 The Board has an Audit Committee 
(or designated Board members) 
with documented terms of 
reference.

1.2.1 Complied The Audit Committee is chaired by a Caritas 
Singapore Board member, and terms of reference 
are documented. 

4 The Board meets regularly with a 
quorum of at least one-third or at 
least three members, whichever 
is greater (or as required by the 
governing instrument).

1.3.1 Complied The Caritas Singapore Board meets once in every 
two months. The quorum for meeting is one-third 
of members. 

The Board of Agape Trustees meets at least once in 
a year.
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S/N Description Code ID Response Explanation (if compliance is in progress, not 
complied or not applicable)

Conflict of interest

5 There are documented procedures 
for Board members and staff to 
declare actual or potential conflicts 
of interest to the Board.

2.1 Complied The conflict of interest declaration procedures for 
Board members are documented in the Caritas 
Singapore Code of Governance; and in the 
Finance and Accounting Policy Manual. All Board 
members also provide a disclosure of their interests 
in all other organisations, including member 
organisations in which they are directors or have 
control on the board. 

The staff handbook covers conflict of interests for 
paid staff.

6 Board members do not vote or 
participate in decision-making on 
matters where they have a conflict 
of interest.

2.4 Complied Board members declare potential or actual conflicts 
of interest and this is documented in the minutes of 
meeting.

Strategic Planning

7 The Board reviews and approves 
the vision and mission of the 
charity. They are documented and 
communicated to its members and 
the public.

3.1.1 Complied The Board reviews the relevance of Caritas 
Singapore’s vision and mission at its planning retreat 
held once in a year.

8 The Board approves and reviews 
a strategic plan for the charity to 
ensure that the activities are in line 
with its objectives.

3.2.2 Complied The Board holds an annual retreat to develop a 
structured and integrated work plan for the year 
in line with its mission and strategies. The Board 
retreat was held in February this year.

Human Resource Management

9 The Board approves documented 
human resource policies for staff.

5.1 Complied Human resource policies are documented in the 
Staff Handbook which is approved by the Executive 
Committee of the Board.

10 There are systems for regular 
supervision, appraisal and 
professional development of staff.

5.6 Complied Caritas Singapore has established systems for 
annual appraisal, development and training needs 
of staff.

11 There is a system to address 
grievances and resolve conflicts.

5.12 Complied Grievance procedures for staff and volunteers are 
set out in the Staff Handbook.

Financial Management and Controls

12 The Board ensures internal control 
systems for financial matters are in 
place with documented procedures.

6.1.2 Complied Finance policies and procedures are documented in 
the Financial and Accounting Policy Manual.

13 The Board ensures reviews on the 
charity’s controls, processes, key 
programmes and events.

6.1.3 Complied Internal audits are conducted to review the 
processes and adequacy of internal controls. The 
Board is updated on the progress of programmes 
and events. 

14 The Board approves an annual 
budget for the charity’s plans and 
regularly monitors its expenditure.

6.2.1 Complied An annual operating budget is prepared in 
consultation with the Board Committees based on 
programmes agreed to at the Board annual retreat. 
This is approved by the Caritas Singapore Board and 
the Board of Agape Trustees. Financial reports are 
also tabled at the Board meetings.

15 The charity discloses its reserves 
policy in the annual report.

6.4.1 Complied Caritas Singapore has established a reserves policy 
and this is disclosed in the notes to its audited 
financial statements.

B Does the charity invest its reserves. Yes
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S/N Description Code ID Response Explanation (if compliance is in progress, not 
complied or not applicable)

16 The charity invests its reserves in 
accordance with an investment 
policy approved by the Board. 
It obtains advice from qualified 
professional advisors, if deemed 
necessary by the Board.

6.4.3 Complied The Board approves the investment mandate of 
Caritas Singapore.

The Finance and Grants Committee recommends 
and oversees its cash management and 
investments.

Fundraising Practices

17 Donations collected are properly 
recorded and promptly deposited 
by the charity.

7.2.2 Complied Fundraising processes and controls are set out in 
the Finance and Accounting Policy Manual. The 
Fundraising Committee reviews and approves 
the fundraising processes, internal controls and 
messages to ensure integrity and transparency of 
the process.

Disclosure and Transparency

18 The charity makes available 
to its stakeholders an annual 
report that includes information 
on its programmes, activities, 
audited financial statements, 
Board members and executive 
management.

8.1 Complied Copies of Caritas Singapore Annual and Financial 
Reports are sent to stakeholders including its 
member organisations, key donors, parishes and 
strategic partners. This is also published on Caritas 
Singapore’s website.

C Are Board members remunerated 
for their Board services.

No

D Does the charity employ paid staff. Yes

19 No staff is involved in setting his or 
her own remuneration.

2.2 Complied The Executive Committee oversees the 
remuneration of staff.

20 The charity discloses in its annual 
report the annual remuneration 
of its three highest paid staff 
who each receives remuneration 
exceeding $100,000, in bands 
of $100,000. If none of its top 
three highest paid staff receives 
more than $100,000 in annual 
remuneration each, the charity 
discloses this fact.

8.3 Complied The total annual remuneration of its three highest 
paid staff in salary bands of less than $100,000 is 
disclosed in its annual report.

Public image

21 The charity accurately portrays its 
image to its members, donors and 
the public.

9.1 Complied Information regarding Caritas Singapore’s scope, 
structure and programmes are provided on its 
website and its publications such as the Annual 
Reports given to interested parties. The Annual 
Report is available on its website.

Footnote (1): 

Reserves Policy 

The Board has established a reserves policy which states: 

The reserves policy of Caritas Singapore aims to uphold adequate funds to fulfil our role as the Church’s umbrella body for our charity and community organisations, and 
be in line with regulatory requirements and industry best practices. At the same time, as a Church organisation, we do not seek to hold excessive funds to provide for 
unknown and far future needs. 

The financial needs of Caritas Singapore comprise (1) operating and programme costs and (2) grants to member organisations. The latter expenditure represents the 
majority of our annual expenditure and is expected to increase proportionately over the years. 

Our grant making role is critical to the functioning and continuation of several Catholic charities which depend on the Council for the majority if not all of their operational 
expenses. Caritas Singapore should have sufficient reserves to allow these organisations to commit to multi-year programmes. 

Caritas Singapore will target a general reserve level of two years, taking into account that the grant making function represents the majority of our expenditure, and the 
lag period between member organisations’ budgetary needs and the inflow from current year’s fundraising activities. 

In the long term, Caritas Singapore may establish specific restricted funds that may be needed to meet donor niches and help with our annual fundraising, such as a 
Capacity Building Fund that is focused on funding our operating needs to make our annual fundraising for our member organisations more effective.
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DIRECTORS' REPORT

The Board of Directors are pleased to present their report together with the audited financial statements of Caritas 
Singapore Community Council Limited (the “Council”) for the financial year ended 30 September 2012.

Members of the Board of Directors

The names of the Board of Directors holding office at the date of this report are:

George Lim   (Chairman)
Laurence Lien    (Deputy Chairman)
Stephen Chu   (Member)
Paul Foo    (Member)
Jane Foo   (Member)
Rev. Fr Patrick Goh   (Member)
Kwek Mean Luck   (Member)
Sr Maria Lau, IJS   (Member)
Angela Lee   (Member)
Wendy Louis    (Member)
Linda Low   (Member)
Friar John-Paul Tan, OFM  (Member)
Thomas Teo   (Member)
Anthony Soo   (Member)
Rev. Monsignor Eugene Vaz (Member)

Arrangements to enable Directors to acquire shares and debentures

The Council is a company limited by guarantee and has no share capital. None of the Directors holding office at the 
end of the financial year had an interest in the share capital of the Council that is required to be reported pursuant to 
Section 201(6)(f) of the Singapore Companies Act, Cap. 50.

Directors’ interests in shares and debentures

The Council is a company limited by guarantee.

There were no shares or debentures in issue in the Council at the end of the financial year.

Directors’ contractual benefits

Since the beginning of the financial year, no Director of the Council has received or become entitled to receive a benefit 
which is required to be disclosed under Section 201(8) of the Companies Act, Cap. 50, by reason of a contract made 
by the Council or a related corporation with the Director, or with a firm of which he is a member, or with a company in 
which the Director has a substantial financial interest.
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DIRECTORS' REPORT

Share options

The Council is a company limited by guarantee.  As such, there are no share options or unissued shares under option.

Auditors

Ernst & Young LLP have expressed their willingness to accept reappointment as auditors.

On behalf of the Board of Directors

George Lim
Director

Laurence Lien 
Director

Singapore
22 November 2012
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We, George Lim and Laurence Lien, being two of the Directors of Caritas Singapore Community Council Limited (the 
“Council”), do hereby state that, in the opinion of the Directors:

(i) the accompanying statements of financial activities/comprehensive income, balance sheet, statement of changes 
in funds and statement of cash flows together with the notes thereto are drawn up so as to give a true and fair 
view of the state of affairs of the Council as at 30 September 2012, and of the results of the business, changes 
in funds and cash flows of the Council for the financial year ended 30 September 2012, and 

(ii) at the date of this statement, there are reasonable grounds to believe that the Council will be able to pay its 
debts as and when they fall due.

On behalf of the Board of Directors

George Lim
Director

Laurence Lien
Director

Singapore
22 November 2012
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Independent auditors’ report 
For the financial year ended 30 September 2012
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To the member of Caritas Singapore Community Council Limited

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Caritas Singapore Community Council Limited (the 
“Council”) set out on pages 47 to 78, which comprise the balance sheet as at 30 September 2012, the statements of 
financial activities/comprehensive income, statement of changes in funds and statement of cash flows for the financial 
year ended 30 September 2012, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

Management’s responsibility for the financial statements

Management is responsible for the preparation of financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with 
the provisions of the Singapore Companies Act, Chapter 50 (the “Act”), the Charities Act, Chapter 37 (the “Charities 
Act”) and Singapore Financial Reporting Standards, and for devising and maintaining a system of internal accounting 
controls sufficient to provide a reasonable assurance that assets are safeguarded against loss from unauthorised use or 
disposition; and transactions are properly authorised and that they are recorded as necessary to permit the preparation 
of true and fair statement of financial activities/comprehensive income and balance sheet and to maintain accountability 
of assets. 

Auditors’ responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.  We conducted our audit in 
accordance with Singapore Standards on Auditing.  Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements 
and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial statements are free from material 
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial 
statements.  The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of 
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.  In making those risk assessments, the 
auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements 
that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not 
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control.  An audit also includes 
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by 
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinion.
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Independent auditors’ report 
For the financial year ended 30 September 2012
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Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements of the Council and the balance sheet and statement of changes in funds of the 
Council are properly drawn up in accordance with the provisions of the Act, the Charities Act and Singapore Financial 
Reporting Standards so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Council as at 30 September 2012 and 
the results, changes in funds and cash flows of the Council for the financial year ended 30 September 2012.

Report on other legal and Regulatory Requirements

In our opinion, the accounting and other records required by the Act to be kept by the Council have been properly kept 
in accordance with the provisions of the Act.

During the course of our audit, nothing has come to our attention that causes us to believe that during the year.

(a) The use of the donation moneys was not in accordance with the objectives of the Council as required under 
regulation 16 of the Charities (Institutions of a Public Character) Regulations; and

(b) The Council has not complied with the requirements in Chapter 37, Regulation 15 (Fund-raising expenses) of the 
Charities (Institutions of a Public Character) Regulations.

Ernst & Young LLP
Public Accountants and
Certified Public Accountants
Singapore
22 November 2012
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Statement of financial activities/comprehensive income
for the financial year ended 30 September 2012
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Note General Fund Agape Fund Total

2012 2012 2012

$ $ $

Incoming resources

Incoming resources from generated 
funds

Voluntary income 3a 1,166,024 5,657,741 6,823,765

Activities for generating funds 3b 30,572 202,500 233,072

Fair value gains on investment securities 3c 1,135 7,734 8,869

Incoming resources from charitable 
activities

Other incoming resources 4 13,180 - 13,180

Total incoming resources 1,210,911 5,867,975 7,078,886

Resources expended

Costs of generating funds

Costs of generating voluntary income 5a 25,000 121,302 146,302

Costs of activities for generating funds 5b 8,435 55,870 64,305

Total costs of generating funds 33,435 177,172 210,607

Net incoming resources available for 
charitable application 1,177,476 5,690,803 6,868,279

Cost of charitable activities 6 1,385,088 3,397,358 4,782,446

Governance costs 8 - 181,252 181,252

1,385,088 3,578,610 4,963,698

Total resources expended 1,418,523 3,755,782 5,174,305

Net incoming resources, representing 
total comprehensive income 10 (207,612) 2,112,193 1,904,581



48

Statement of financial activities/comprehensive income
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Note General Fund Agape Fund Total

2011 2011 2011

$ $ $

Incoming resources

Incoming resources from generated 
funds

Voluntary income 3a 1,673,421 5,871,890 7,545,311

Activities for generating funds 3b 30,072 258,500 288,572

Interest income 3c 1,747 8,120 9,867

Incoming resources from charitable 
activities

Other incoming resources 4 38,005 - 38,005

Total incoming resources 1,743,245 6,138,510 7,881,755

Resources expended

Costs of generating funds

Costs of generating voluntary income 5a 33,435 117,522 150,957

Costs of activities for generating funds 5b 7,386 63,487 70,873

Total costs of generating funds 40,821 181,009 221,830

Net incoming resources available for 
charitable application 1,702,424 5,957,501 7,659,925

Cost of charitable activities 6 1,475,688 4,289,143 5,764,831

Governance costs 8 - 200,536 200,536

1,475,688 4,489,679 5,965,367

Total resources expended 1,516,509 4,670,688 6,187,197

Net incoming resources, representing 
total comprehensive income 10 226,736 1,467,822 1,694,558

The accompanying accounting policies and explanatory notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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The accompanying accounting policies and explanatory notes form an integral part of the financial statements.

Note 2012 2011

$ $

Non-current asset
Property, plant and equipment 11 18,968 9,903

Current assets
Prepayments 14,930 13,751
Other debtors and deposits 12 47,602 9,710
Investment securities 13 6,008,869 -
Cash and cash equivalents 7,566,151 11,619,482

13,637,552 11,642,943

Non-current liability
Hire purchase creditor 16 8,552 -

Current liabilities
Deferred income 14 208,960 5,500
Creditors and accruals 15 181,761 294,680

390,721 300,180

Net current assets 13,246,831 11,342,763

Net assets 13,257,247 11,352,666

Funds
General Fund

Restricted fund 18 345,786 464,636
Unrestricted fund 19 1,349,575 1,545,737

1,695,361 2,010,373

Agape Fund
Restricted fund/Expendable endowment fund 18 559,540 641,440
Unrestricted fund 19 11,002,346 8,700,853

11,561,886 9,342,293

Total funds 13,257,247 11,352,666
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General Fund Agape Fund Total Fund

$ $ $

At 30 September 2010 1,791,557 7,866,551 9,658,108

Net incoming resources, representing total 
comprehensive income for the financial year 226,736 1,467,822 1,694,558

Gross transfers between funds (Note 19) (7,920) 7,920 -

At 30 September 2011 2,010,373 9,342,293 11,352,666

Net incoming resources (207,612) 2,112,193 1,904,581

Gross transfers between funds (Note 19) (107,400) 107,400 -

At 30 September 2012 1,695,361 11,561,886 13,257,247

The accompanying accounting policies and explanatory notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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The accompanying accounting policies and explanatory notes form an integral part of the financial statements.

2012 2011

$ $

Cash flows from operating activities

Net incoming resources for the year 1,904,581 1,694,558
Adjustments:
Fair value gains on investment securities (8,869) -
Interest income - (9,867)
Interest expense on hire purchase equipment 384 -
Depreciation charge for the year 9,820 62,666
Disposal of property, plant and equipment written off 707 -

Operating cash flows before changes in working capital 1,906,623 1,747,357

Changes in working capital
(Increase)/decrease in prepayments (1,179) 530
(Increase)/decrease in other debtors and deposits (37,892) 1,924
Increase in deferred income 203,460 5,500
(Decrease)/increase in creditors and accruals (115,551) 162,094
Net cash inflows from operating activities 1,955,461 1,917,405

Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (6,490) (7,045)
Purchase of investment securities (6,000,000) -
Interest income received - 9,867

Net cash flows from investing activities (6,006,490) 2,822

Cash flows from financing activities
Repayment of obligations under hire purchase (1,918) -
Interest expense on hire purchase equipment (384) -
Net cash flows used in financing activities (2,302) -

Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents (4,053,331) 1,920,227

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the financial year 11,619,482 9,699,255
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the financial year 7,566,151 11,619,482
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1.  General information

Caritas Singapore Community Council Limited (the “Council”) is a company limited by guarantee and registered 
charity under the Singapore Companies Act, Cap. 50 (Registration and Unique Entity No: 200613504D). The 
Council was initially registered as the Catholic Social and Community Council Limited under the Charities Act, 
Chapter 37, in Singapore (Registration No: 02022). On 26 August 2008, it formally changed its name to Caritas 
Singapore Community Council Limited. The registered office is at 55 Waterloo Street, #09-03, Catholic Welfare 
Centre, Singapore 187954. 

The Council has established the CSCC Agape Fund (“Agape Fund”), a trust fund governed by a board of six 
trustees. The fund was also registered under the Charities Act, Chapter 37, in Singapore (Unique Entity No: 
T06CC2001K). The objectives of the fund are in line with that of the Council.

The principal activities of the Council are to provide the overall leadership to the various charitable organisations 
under the Archdiocese which assist in the relief of poverty and provide support to needy beneficiaries regardless 
of age, sex, nationality, religion or moral character. The Council is the official social and community arm of the 
Archdiocese to fulfil the Church’s social mission for the benefit of the broader community.

2.  Summary of significant accounting policies

2.1  Basis of preparation

The financial statements of the Council have been prepared in accordance with Singapore Financial Reporting 
Standards (“FRSs”). They are also subjected to the provisions of the Charities Act, Cap. 37.

The accounting policies have been consistently applied by the Council during the financial year.

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis. The financial statements are presented in 
Singapore Dollars (SGD or $), which is the Council’s functional and presentation currency.  

2.2  Changes in accounting policies

The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the previous financial year except in the current 
financial year, the Council has adopted all the new and revised standards and Interpretations of FRS (INT FRS) 
that are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 October 2011.  The adoption of these standards and 
interpretations did not have any effect on the financial performance or position of the Council.
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2.3  Standards issued but not yet effective

The Council has not adopted the following standards and interpretations that have been issued but not yet 
effective:

Description Effective for annual 
periods beginning on 
or after

Amendments to FRS 101 – Severe Hyperinflation and Removal of Fixed Dates for 
First-time Adopters

1 July 2011

Amendments to FRS 107 Disclosures – Transfers of Financial Assets 1 July 2011

Amendments to FRS 12 Deferred Tax: Recovery of Underlying Assets 1 January 2012

Amendments to FRS 1 Presentation of Items of Other Comprehensive Income 1 July 2012

Revised FRS 19 Employee Benefits 1 January 2013

FRS 113 Fair Value Measurements 1 January 2013

Revised FRS 27 Separate Financial Statements 1 January 2014

Revised FRS 28 Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures 1 January 2014

Amendments to FRS 32 Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities 1 January 2014

FRS 110 Consolidated Financial Statements 1 January 2014

FRS 111 Joint Arrangements 1 January 2014

FRS 112 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities 1 January 2014

The directors expect that the adoption of the other standards and interpretations above will have no material 
impact on the financial statements in the period of initial application.  

2.4  Significant accounting estimates and judgements

Estimates, assumptions concerning the future and judgements are made in the preparation of the financial 
statements. They affect the application of the Council’s accounting policies, reported amounts of assets, 
liabilities, income and expenses, and disclosures made. They are assessed on an on-going basis and are based on 
experience and relevant factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under 
the circumstances.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

There are no significant accounting estimates and judgements at the balance sheet date, that have a significant 
risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial 
year.

2.5  Functional currency

The Council has determined the currency of the primary economic environment in which the Council operates 
i.e. functional currency, to be SGD.  Incoming resources and resources expended are primarily influenced by 
fluctuations in SGD.
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2.6  Property, plant and equipment

All items of property, plant and equipment are initially recorded at cost.  The cost of an item of property, plant 
and equipment is recognised as an asset if, and only if, it is probable that future economic benefits associated 
with the item will flow to the Council and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.  Subsequent to 
recognition, property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated 
impairment losses.  

When significant parts of property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced in intervals, the Company 
recognises such parts as individual assets with specific useful lives and depreciation, respectively. Likewise, when 
a major inspection is performed, its cost is recognised in the carrying amount of the plant and equipment as 
a replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognised in 
profit or loss as incurred. 

Depreciation of an asset begins when it is available for use and is computed on a straight-line basis over the 
estimated useful lives of the assets as follows:

Years

Computer equipment - 1

Donated assets - 1

Office equipment and furniture - 5

Leasehold improvements - 2

The carrying values of property, plant and equipment are reviewed for impairment when events or changes in 
circumstances indicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable. 

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits 
are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on de-recognition of the asset is included in the statement 
of financial activities/comprehensive income in the year the asset is derecognised.

There are no items of property, plant and equipment acquired in full or in part from the proceeds of a grant.

Where functional items of property, plant and equipment have been donated, they are included in the 
balance sheet at their fair value at the date of the gift and also included in the statement of financial activities/
comprehensive income as an incoming resource. Accounting policies for the valuation of gifts are disclosed in 
Note 2.17 (c).
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2.7  Impairment of non-financial assets

The Council assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any 
such indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Council makes an estimate 
of the asset’s recoverable amount.

An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating unit’s fair value less costs to sell 
and its value in use and is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows 
that are largely independent of those from other assets. Where the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its 
recoverable amount, the asset is written down to its recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognised in 
the statement of financial activities/comprehensive income as ‘other operating expenses’. In assessing value in 
use, the estimated future cash flows expected to be generated by the asset are discounted to their present value 
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks 
specific to the asset. In determining fair value less costs to sell, recent market transactions are taken into account, 
if available. If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used. These calculations 
are corroborated by valuation multiples, quoted share prices for publicly traded subsidiaries or other available 
fair value indicators. 

An assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether there is any indication that previously recognised 
impairment losses recognised for an asset may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such indication exists, 
the recoverable amount is estimated. A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed only if there has been 
a change in the estimates used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was 
recognised. If that is the case, the carrying amount of the asset is increased to its recoverable amount. That 
increased amount cannot exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation, 
had no impairment loss been recognised previously. Reversal of an impairment loss is recognised in the statement 
of financial activities/comprehensive income. After such a reversal, the depreciation charge is adjusted in future 
periods to allocate the asset’s revised carrying amount, less any residual value, on a systematic basis over its 
remaining useful life.

2.8  Financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are recognised when, and only when, the Council becomes a party to the contractual provisions 
of the financial instrument. The Council determines the classification of its financial assets at initial recognition.

When financial assets are recognised initially, they are measured at fair value, plus, in the case of financial assets 
not at fair value through profit or loss, directly attributable transaction costs.
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2.8  Financial assets (cont’d)

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their classification as follows:

(a) Loans and receivables

Non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market 
are classified as loans and receivables. Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables are measured 
at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less impairment. Gains and losses are recognised in 
profit or loss when the loans and receivables are derecognised or impaired, and through the amortisation 
process.

(b) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include financial assets designated upon initial recognition 
at fair value through profit or loss. Subsequent to initial recognition, financial assets at fair value through 
profit or loss are measured at fair value. Any gains or losses arising from changes in fair value of the financial 
assets are recognised in profit or loss. 

De-recognition

A financial asset is derecognised where the contractual right to receive cash flows from the asset has expired. 
On de-recognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between the carrying amount and the sum 
of the consideration received and any cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in other comprehensive 
income is recognised in profit or loss.

2.9  Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on hand, and short-term, highly liquid investments that are 
readily convertible to known amount of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. 
The accounting policy for the category of financial assets is stated in Note 2.8.

2.10  Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are recognised on the balance sheet when, and only when, the Council becomes a party to 
the contractual provisions of the financial instrument.  Financial liabilities are initially recognised at fair value plus 
directly attributable transaction costs and subsequently measured at amortised cost using effective interest rate 
method.

Gains and losses are recognised in the statement of financial activities/comprehensive income when the liabilities 
are derecognised as well as through the amortisation process.  The liabilities are derecognised when the obligation 
under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expired.
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2.11  Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Council has a present obligation (legal or constructive) where, as a result of 
a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle 
the obligation and the amount of the obligation can be estimated reliably. 

Provisions are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.  If it is 
no longer probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the 
obligation, the provision is reversed. If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted 
using a current pre tax rate that reflects, where appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is 
used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

2.12  Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will 
be received and all attaching conditions will be complied with. Government grants shall be recognised in the 
statement of financial activities/ comprehensive income on a systematic basis over the periods in which the entity 
recognises as expenses the related costs for which the grants are intended to compensate.

2.13  Deferred income

Income received is recognised at fair value where there is reasonable assurance that the income will be received 
and all attaching conditions will be complied with. Income received in advance or subject to donor-imposed 
conditions that specify a future time period in which the expenditure of corresponding resources can take place 
is recorded as deferred income.

2.14  Employee benefits

(a) Defined contribution plans

The Council participates in the national pension schemes as defined by the laws of the countries in which 
it has operations.  In particular, the Council makes contributions to the Central Provident Fund scheme in 
Singapore, a defined contribution pension scheme. Contributions to defined contribution pension schemes 
are recognised as an expense in the period in which the related service is performed.

(b) Employee leave entitlement

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised as a liability when they accrue to employees. The 
estimated liability for leave is recognised for services rendered by employees up to the balance sheet date.
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2.15  Leases

The determination of whether an arrangement is, or contains a lease is based on the substance of the arrangement 
at inception date: whether fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets or 
the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset, even if that right is not explicitly specified in an arrangement.

For arrangements entered into prior to 1 June 2006, the date of inception is deemed to be 1 June 2006 in 
accordance with the transitional requirements of INT FRS 104.

(a) Finance lease

Finance leases which transfer to the Council substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of 
the leased item, are capitalised at the inception of the lease at the fair value of the leased asset or, if lower, 
at the present value of the minimum lease payments. Any initial direct costs are also added to the amount 
capitalised.  Lease payments are apportioned between the finance charges and reduction of the lease liability 
so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance charges are 
charged to the statement of financial activities/ comprehensive income. 

Capitalised leased assets are depreciated over the shorter of the estimated useful life of the asset and the 
lease term, if there is no reasonable certainty that the Group will obtain ownership by the end of the lease 
term.

(b) Operating lease

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense in the statement of financial activities/comprehensive 
income on a straight-line basis over the lease term.  The aggregate benefit of incentives provided by the lessor 
is recognised as a reduction of rental expense over the lease term on a straight-line basis.

2.16  Incoming resources from generated funds

All incoming resources are included in the statement of financial activities/comprehensive income to the extent 
that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Council and the amount can be reliably measured. 
No amounts are included for services donated by volunteers. Incoming resources from generated funds comprise:

Voluntary income

(a) Donations

Such income is recognised when received. Income received is recognised at fair value where there is reasonable 
assurance that the income will be received and all attaching conditions will be complied with. All income is 
demarcated between the Council’s General Fund and the Agape Fund. The Agape Fund is registered as an 
IPC and thus donations requiring tax exemption are credited into the Agape Fund. Non tax-exempt donations 
are credited to the General Fund.
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2.17 Incoming resources from generated funds (cont’d)

(b) Membership subscriptions

Such income is recognised on an accrual basis over the life of the subscriptions.

(c) Gifts-in-kind

Gifts-in-kind are recognised based on an estimate of the fair value at the date of the receipt of the donation 
of the non-monetary asset or the grant of a right to a monetary asset. The donation is recognised if the 
amount of the gift can be measured reliably and there is no uncertainty that it will be received.

Activities for generating funds

Proceeds from such activities are recognised in the period in which the event takes place.  Any sales of merchandise 
are accounted for when the transaction occurs.

Interest income

Interest income is accounted for on accrual basis using the effective interest method.

2.18  Incoming resources from charitable activities

This income arises from activities such as talks, seminars and conferences undertaken by the Council in furtherance 
of its charitable objectives. Proceeds from such activities are recognised in the period in which the event takes 
place.

2.19  Resources expended

Expenditure is accounted for on accrual basis. Allocations of support costs are based on payroll costs of time 
spent by staff, or direct expenditure and activity levels, as appropriate. Resources expended comprise:

Costs of generating voluntary income

The costs of generating voluntary income are those costs attributable to generating income for the Council, 
including salaries and directly attributable overheads such as the costs of producing advertising and direct mail 
materials. 

Costs of activities for generating funds

These costs include the direct cost of hosting such activities and all directly attributable overheads.  No value is 
ascribed to goods donated for re-sale or for auction.
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2.19 Resources expended (cont’d)

Costs of charitable activities

The charitable activities of the Council flow from its vision and purpose. The primary charitable activities are 
grants given to member organisations to part finance their operational expenditure and programmes and also to 
parishes to fund charitable projects which are directed to the poor and those in need in the community.

The Council’s charitable activities of awarding grants are distributed through a formal grant making process by 
the Finance and Grants Committee, which reviews and recommends such grants for the approval by the Board 
of the Council and thereafter the Board of Trustees for any application of funds from the Agape Fund. 

The Council’s Finance and Grants Committee also reviews and evaluates all funding requests from parishes and their 
proposed charitable works. The Board of the Council reviews and approves the Committee’s recommendations 
of the grants before they are disbursed in full to the parishes. 

Grants to member organisations which have IPC status are applied from the Agape Fund. All other grants are 
applied from the General Fund. The grants are disbursed in tranches, at the discretion of the Council, to take into 
account the cash flow requirements of the member organisations.  

Grant expenditure is charged to the statement of financial activities/comprehensive income immediately from 
the point of the award being made, as evidenced by the grant agreement entered into between the Council and 
the grantee. 

Support costs

Support Costs are those costs incurred in support of fundraising activities and the awarding and payment of 
grants. These are an integral cost of carrying out the direct charitable objectives of the organisation. The details 
of support costs in the statement of financial activities/comprehensive income are disclosed in Note 9.

Governance costs

Governance costs are those incurred in compliance with constitutional and statutory requirements including 
related professional fees.
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2.20  Funds accounting

The funds held by the Council are:

•  General Funds are funds that can be used in accordance with the charitable objectives of the Council.  Such 
funds are either unrestricted or restricted. The restrictions arise when specified by the donor or when funds 
are raised for a particular restricted purpose. Currently, there are two restricted funds, the Capacity Building 
Fund and the St. Jude Fund. The Capacity Building Fund is an expendable endowment fund established so 
that in the long term, the interest income generated from this fund would support the on-going operating 
needs of the Council. Non tax-exempt donations for the Capacity Building Fund are credited into the General 
Fund, and usage of the fund requires the approval of the Board of the Council.  

•  The Agape Fund is made up of tax-exempt donations that can be used in accordance with the charitable 
objectives of the Council. The Agape Fund also has both unrestricted and restricted funds, the latter which 
includes the Capacity Building Fund and the St. Jude Fund. Tax-exempt donations for the Capacity Building 
Fund are credited into the Agape Fund and usage of the fund requires the approval of the Board of the 
Council and the Board of Trustees. The St. Jude Fund was created in November 2010 for restricted donations 
made by donors crossing more than one fiscal year. Tax-exempt donations for the St. Jude Fund are also 
credited into the Agape Fund and usage of the fund is according to the intent of the donor. The first major 
donor of the St. Jude Fund, who wishes to remain anonymous, contributed a sum of S$500,000 for grants 
to be made to various member organisations over a period of ten years starting in FY2011. 

2.21  Related parties

A related party includes the trustees/office bearers (that is, directors) and key management of the Council. It 
also includes an entity or person that directly or indirectly controls, is controlled by, or is under common or 
joint control with these persons. It also includes members of the key management personnel of close members 
of the family of any individual referred to herein and others who have the ability to control, jointly control or 
significantly influence by or for which significant voting power in such entity resides with, directly or indirectly, 
any such individual. 

2.22  Current tax

Under Section 13U(1) of the Income Tax Act, all registered charities will enjoy automatic income tax exemption 
without having the need to meet the 80% spending rule. In other words, they do not need to file income tax 
returns.
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3.  Incoming resources from generating funds

 a)  Voluntary income

General Fund Agape Fund

Unrestricted
Restricted/

Endowment Total Unrestricted
Restricted/

Endowment Total Total

$ $ $ $ $ $ $

Year ended 
30.9.2012

Donations 1,162,124 1,150 1,163,274 5,557,741 100,000 5,657,741 6,821,015

Membership 
subscriptions 2,750 - 2,750 - - - 2,750

1,164,874 1,150 1,166,024 5,557,741 100,000 5,657,741 6,823,765

Year ended 
30.9.2011

Donations 1,390,516 281,055 1,671,571 5,316,740 555,150 5,871,890 7,543,461

Membership 
subscriptions 1,850 - 1,850 - - - 1,850

1,392,366 281,055 1,673,421 5,316,740 555,150 5,871,890 7,545,311

Included in donations is an amount of $5,657,741 (2011: $5,871,890) for which tax-exempt receipts have been 
issued.

(b)  Activities for generating funds

General Fund Agape Fund

Unrestricted
Restricted/

Endowment Total Unrestricted
Restricted/

Endowment Total Total

$ $ $ $ $ $ $

Year ended 
30.9.2012

CBN Golf for 
Charity 30,572 - 30,572 202,500 - 202,500 233,072

Year ended 
30.9.2011

CBN Golf for 
Charity 30,072 - 30,072 258,500 - 258,500 288,572

The Council commenced the activities for generating funds during the current financial year.  Included in the 
receipts is an amount of $202,500 (2011: $258,500) for which tax exempt receipts have been issued.
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3.  Incoming resources from generating funds (cont’d)

 (c) Fair value gains on investment securities

General Fund Agape Fund

Unrestricted
Restricted/

Endowment Total Unrestricted
Restricted/

Endowment Total Total

$ $ $ $ $ $ $

Year ended 
30.9.2012

Fair value 
gains on 
investment 
securities 1,135 - 1,135 7,734 - 7,734 8,869

Year ended 
30.9.2011

Interest 
income from 
short term 
deposits 
placed with a 
bank 1,747 - 1,747 8,120 - 8,120 9,867

4.  Incoming resources from charitable activities

General Fund Agape Fund

Unrestricted Unrestricted Total

$ $ $

Year ended 30.9.2012

VWO’s-Charities Capability Fund 4,600 - 4,600

Social Mission Conference 2012 8,580 - 8,580

13,180 - 13,180

Year ended 30.9.2011

VWO’s-Charities Capability Fund 38,005 - 38,005

38,005 - 38,005

The Council received a grant amount of $4,600 (2011: $38,005) from the National Council of Social Service to 
co-fund a consultancy project.
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5.  Costs of generating funds

 (a) Costs of generating voluntary income

General Fund Agape Fund

Unrestricted Unrestricted Total

$ $ $

Year ended 30.9.2012

Direct costs 11,197 54,331 65,528

Staff costs 8,840 42,894 51,734

Support costs (Note 9) 4,963 24,077 29,040

25,000 121,302 146,302

Year ended 30.9.2011

Direct costs 16,729 58,799 75,528

Staff costs 10,432 36,669 47,101

Support costs (Note 9) 6,274 22,054 28,328

33,435 117,522 150,957

 (b) Costs of activities for generating funds

General Fund Agape Fund

Unrestricted Unrestricted Total

$ $ $

Year ended 30.9.2012

Direct costs 8,435 55,870 64,305

Year ended 30.9.2011

Direct costs 7,386 63,487 70,873
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6.  Costs of charitable activities

General Fund Agape Fund

Unrestricted
Restricted/

Endowment Total Unrestricted
Restricted/

Endowment Total Total

$ $ $ $ $ $ $

Year ended 
30.9.2012

Formation 
expenditure

- Direct costs 32,989 - 32,989 - - - 32,989

- Support 
costs (Note 
9) 35,742 - 35,742 35,742

- Staff costs 63,672 - 63,672 - - - 63,672

Grant 
and other 
charitable 
activities 
expenditure

- Direct costs 20,185 - 20,185 31,304 - 31,304 51,489

- Support 
costs (Note 
9) - - - 109,458 - 109,458 109,458

- Staff costs - - - 194,996 - 194,996 194,996

- Grant 
expenditure 
(Note 7) 1,112,500 120,000 1,232,500 2,879,700 181,900 3,061,600 4,294,100

1,265,088 120,000 1,385,088 3,215,458 181,900 3,397,358 4,782,446

General Fund Agape Fund

Unrestricted
Restricted/

Endowment Total Unrestricted
Restricted/

Endowment Total Total

$ $ $ $ $ $ $

Year ended 
30.9.2012

Formation 
expenditure

- Direct costs 37,821 - 37,821 - - - 37,821

- Support  
costs (Note 
9) 25,753 - 25,753 - - - 25,753

- Staff costs 42,820 - 42,820 - - - 42,820

Grant 
and other 
charitable 
activities 
expenditure

- Direct costs - - - 11,694 - 11,694 11,694

- Support 
costs (Note 
9) - - - 146,792 - 146,792 146,792

- Staff costs - - - 244,074 - 244,074 244,074

- Grant 
expenditure 
(Note 7) 1,193,790 175,504 1,369,294 3,749,583 137,000 3,886,583 5,255,877

1,300,184 175,504 1,475,688 4,152,143 137,000 4,289,143 5,764,831
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7.  Grant expenditure in furtherance of the Council’s objects

The amounts payable during the period relating to this expenditure are set out below:

2012 2011
$ $

Abilities Beyond Limitations and Expectations (ABLE) 1,3 384,000 450,000

Assisi Hospice 1,3 10,000 10,000

Boys’ Town Singapore 1,3 600,000 611,194

Canossaville Children’s Home (CCH) 1,3 10,000 10,000

Catholic Welfare Services 1,3 300,000 300,000

Catholic AIDS Response Effort (CARE) 1,3 394,000 349,805

CLARITY Singapore Ltd (CLARITY) 1,3 5,000 450,000

Infant Jesus Homes & Children’s Centres (IJHCC) 1 398,000 266,400

St. Theresa’s Home (programme under CWS) 3 - 30,000

Family Life Society (FLS) 1,3 699,500 941,482

Morning Star Community Services (MSCS) 1 - 347,452

Marine Parade Family Service Centre (MPFSC) 1 261,100 245,754

Roman Catholic Prison Ministry (RCPM) 2,3 320,000 289,090

Archdiocesan Commission for the Pastoral Care of Migrants and Itinerant People (ACMI) 2 344,000 410,100

Caritas Humanitarian Aid & Relief Initiatives, Singapore (CHARIS) 2 280,000 250,000

Parishes 4 288,500 294,600

4,294,100 5,255,877

1 These are IPC affiliate member organisations of the Council.
2 These are non IPC affiliate member organisations of the Council.
3 These grants include partial or whole donations credited to the St. Jude Fund as follows:

General Fund

CARE - 10,000

RCPM - 50,000

- 60,000

Agape Fund

ABLE 5,000 5,000

Assisi Hospice 10,000 10,000

Boys’ Town Singapore 5,000 5,000

Boys’ Town Singapore - Building Project - 25,000

Canossaville Children’s Home 10,000 10,000

Catholic Welfare Services Programmes:

- Gift of Love Home 2,000 2,000

- Good Shepherd Centre 2,000 2,000

- St. Joseph’s Home 2,000 2,000

- St. Theresa’s Home 2,000  2,000

- St. Theresa’s Home Dental Project - 30,000

- St. Vincent Home 2,000 2,000

- Villa Francis Home for the Aged 2,000 2,000

CLARITY 5,000 5,000

FLS - Pregnancy Crisis Services - 35,000

47,000 137,000

47,000 197,000
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7. Grant expenditure in furtherance of the Council’s objects (cont’d)

4 The Council provided grants to 20 parishes to fund the parishes’ projects for the poor and those in need in the 
community. The following is a summary of the specific causes, as requested by the parishes, for which these 
grants have been given:

2012 2011
$ $

Financial assistance to individuals/families in crisis 106,400 124,100
Food vouchers/rations to the poor 20,000 23,500
Aid programme to migrant workers 22,800 20,000
Medical clinic programme 10,000 -
Soup Kitchen/St Anthony’s Bread programme 20,100 41,600
Aid programme to needy students 22,000 11,000
General assistance programme for poor and elderly 39,300 22,000
SSVP Conferences 5 42,900 47,400
Others 5,000 5,000

288,500 294,600

5 The Society of St. Vincent de Paul (SSVP) seeks to help the underprivileged families by providing financial aid 
and food rations. SSVP is organised with individual Conferences at 30 parishes. These Conferences are grouped 
into five particular councils under a National Council. Nine of the parishes have requested and received grants 
for the benefit of their Conferences. A listing of these conferences and the allocated grant amounts has also 
been provided to the SSVP National Council.

8.  Governance costs

General Fund Agape Fund

Unrestricted Unrestricted Total

$ $ $

Year ended 30.9.2012

Direct costs - 44,558 44,558

Staff costs - 87,549 87,549

Support costs (Note 9) - 49,145 49,145

- 181,252 181,252

Year ended 30.9.2011

Direct costs - 49,676 49,676

Staff costs - 94,204 94,204

Support costs (Note 9) - 56,656 56,656

- 200,536 200,536

Included in the direct costs are costs of preparing of financial reports, audit fees, board and committee costs.
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9.  Support costs

Costs of 
generating 

funds

Costs of 
formation 
activities

Costs of 
charitable 
activities

Governance 
costs

Total 
support 

costs

$ $ $ $ $

Year ended 30.9.2012

Finance 369 453 1,389 624 2,835

Information technology 3,668 4,515 13,826 6,207 28,216

Human resources 9,674 11,907 36,465 16,372 74,418

Corporate resources 15,329 18,867 57,778 25,942 117,916

29,040 35,742 109,458 49,145 223,385

Year ended 30.9.2011

Finance 802 730 4,158 1,605 7,295

Information technology 8,579 7,799 44,456 17,158 77,992

Human resources 8,735 7,940 45,260 17,469 79,404

Corporate resources 10,212 9,284 52,918 20,424 92,838

28,328 25,753 146,792 56,656 257,529

10.  Net incoming resources

Net incoming resources are stated after charging:

2012 2011

$ $

Auditors’ remuneration

- Audit fees 16,853 15,000

Depreciation 9,820 62,666

Rental expense 65,049 51,720

Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment 707 -
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11.  Property, plant and equipment

Computer 
equipment

Donated 
assets

Office 
equipment 

and furniture
Leasehold 

improvements Total

$ $ $ $ $

Cost:

At 30 September 2010 
and 1 October 2010 76,604 6,898 40,993 30,673 155,168

Additions 6,694 - 351 - 7,045

At 30 September 2011 83,298 6,898 41,344 30,673 162,213

Additions 5,991 - 13,601 - 19,592

Disposals - - (4,295) (30,673) (34,968)

At 30 September 2012 89,289 6,898 50,650 - 146,837

Accumulated depreciation:

At 30 September 2010 
and 1 October 2010 27,072 6,055 25,844 30,673 89,644

Charge for the year 53,670 843 8,153 - 62,666

At 30 September 2011 80,742 6,898 33,997 30,673 152,310

Charge for the year 3,611 - 6,210 - 9,821

Disposals - - (3,589) (30,673) (34,262)

At 30 September 2012 84,353 6,898 36,618 - 127,869

Net carrying amount:

At 30 September 2012 4,936 - 14,032 - 18,968

At 30 September 2011 2,556 - 7,347 - 9,903

During the financial year, the Council acquired office equipment amounting to $13,102 (2011: nil) by means 
of hire purchase. The cash outflow on addition of property, plant and equipment amounted to $6,490 (2011: 
$7,045).

12.  Other debtors and deposits

2012 2011

$ $

Other debtors 7,950 -

Deposits 39,652 9,710

47,602 9,710
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13.  Investment securities

2012 2011

$ $

Singapore Fullerton Cash Fund 6,008,869 -

The Council subscribed to the Singapore Fullerton Cash Fund, (“Fund”), which is a money market fund. The Fund 
offers daily dealing and has no redemption penalty. The Fund invests primarily in SGD deposits with reputable 
financial institutions.

14.  Deferred income

The movement in deferred income is as follows:

2012 2011

$ $

Balance at beginning of the year 5,500 -

Incoming resources received during the year 208,960 5,500

Transfer to comprehensive income statement (5,500) -

Balance at end of the year 208,960 5,500

Deferred income of $5,500 (2011: $nil) has been recognised as income.

15.  Creditors and accruals

2012 2011

$ $

Accruals 77,462 67,013

Hire purchase creditor (Note 16) 2,632 -

Grants payable – Agape 100,000 226,000

Others 1,667 1,667

181,761 294,680
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16.  Hire purchase creditor

The hire purchase agreement expires over the next five years and the discount rate implicit in the hire purchase 
is 3.91% per annum.

Future minimum payments under hire purchase together with the present value of the net minimum payments 
are as follows:

2012 2011

Minimum
payments

Present
value of

payments
Minimum
payments

Present
value of

payments

$ $ $ $

Within one year 3,144 2,632 - -

After one year but not more than five 
years 10,218 8,552 - -

Total minimum lease payments 13,362 11,184 - -

Amount representing finance charges (2,178) - - -

Present value of net minimum lease 
payments 11,184 11,184 - -

17.  Commitments

The Council leases offices under non-cancellable lease agreements.  The leases, which do not have purchase 
options, expire at various dates till 31 May 2013.  Future minimum rentals under non-cancellable operating 
leases are as follows:

2012 2011

$ $

Within one year 56,832 4,627

After one year but not more than five years - -

After five years - -

56,832 4,627

The Council’s registered office at 55 Waterloo Street is undergoing renovation works which is expected to be 
completed by May 2013. The owner of 55 Waterloo Street has not entered into a new lease agreement with 
the Council. However, the Council has made a commitment to pay the 30 years rental in advance amounting to 
approximately $3.9 million.   In the meantime, the Council has relocated to a temporary office at 1557 Keppel 
Road, Cantonment Central.
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18.  Restricted and expendable endowment funds

Balance at 
beginning of 

the year
Incoming 
resources

Resources 
expended

Balance at 
end of the 

year

$ $ $ $

2012

General Fund

ACMI 1 120,000 - 120,000 -

Capacity Building Fund 3 344,636 1,150 - 345,786

464,636 1,150 120,000 345,786

Agape Fund

CWS 1 200 - 200 -

CCH 1 200 - - 200

CLARITY 1 20,000 - - 20,000

ABLE 1 34,000 - 34,000 -

IJHCC 1 500 - 500 -

CARE 1 200 - 200 -

Boys’ Town Singapore - 100,000 100,000 -

St. Jude Fund 2 363,000 - 47,000 316,000

Capacity Building Fund 3 223,340 - - 223,340

641,440 100,000 181,900 559,540

Total restricted and expendable 
endowment funds 1,106,076 101,150 301,900 905,326

Total unrestricted funds (Note 19) 10,246,590 6,977,736 4,872,405 12,351,921

Total funds 11,352,666 7,078,886 5,174,305 13,257,247
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18.  Restricted and expendable endowment funds (cont’d)

Balance at 
beginning of 

the year
Incoming 
resources

Resources 
expended

Balance at 
end of the 

year

$ $ $ $

2011

General Fund

ACMI 1 - 120,000 - 120,000

Boys’ Town Singapore 1 - 100,000 100,000 -

FLS 1 15,505 - 15,505 -

St. Jude Fund 2 - 60,000 60,000 -

Capacity Building Fund 3 343,581 1,055 - 344,636

359,086 281,055 175,505 464,636

Agape Fund

CWS 1 - 200 - 200

CCH 1 - 200 - 200

CLARITY 1 - 20,000 - 20,000

ABLE 1 - 34,000 - 34,000

IJHCC 1 - 500 - 500

CARE 1 - 200 - 200

St. Jude Fund 2 - 500,000 137,000 363,000

Capacity Building Fund 3 223,290 50 - 223,340

223,290 555,150 137,000 641,440

Total restricted and expendable 
endowment funds 582,376 836,205 312,505 1,106,076

Total unrestricted funds (Note 19) 9,075,732 7,045,550 5,874,692 10,246,590

Total funds 9,658,108 7,881,755 6,187,197 11,352,666

1 The Funds were raised for the needs of the member organisations or as specified by the donors.

2 See Note 2.20 for background and further explanation of the St. Jude Fund, and Note 7 (Footnote 3) for the 
details of the grants made from the St. Jude Fund.

3 The Capacity Building Fund is an expendable endowment fund established by the Council that seeks to fund, 
in the long term, the operating needs of the Council.
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19.  Unrestricted funds

Balance at 
beginning of 

the year
Incoming 
resources

Resources 
expended

Gross transfers 
between funds

Balance at end 
of the year

$ $ $ $ $

2012

General Fund 1,545,737 1,209,761 1,298,523 (107,400) 1,349,575

Agape Fund 8,700,853 5,767,975 3,573,882 107,400 11,002,346

Total (Note 18) 10,246,590 6,977,736 4,872,405 - 12,351,921

2011

General Fund 1,432,471 1,462,190 1,341,004 (7,920) 1,545,737

Agape Fund 7,643,261 5,583,360 4,533,688 7,920 8,700,853

Total (Note 18) 9,075,732 7,045,550 5,874,692 - 10,246,590

The transfer relates to donations received in prior financial year where donors who had previously not required tax 
exempt receipts for their donations have now requested for tax exemption. The Inland Revenue of the Authority 
of Singapore has been notified, and has approved the change in tax exemption status for these donations.

20.  Trustees’/Directors’ remuneration

No Trustee or Director has received any remuneration from the Council or Agape Fund during the year and 
neither has received reimbursements for expenses incurred in attending Board, committee or Trustee meetings.

21.  Related party transactions

The following significant transactions took place during the year:

2012 2011

$ $

Grant expenditure (Note 7)

- CHARIS 280,000 250,000

- CARE 394,000 349,805

These organisations are related parties to the Council in this financial year due to common directors.



75

Notes to the financial statements - 30 September 2012

Fi
n

an
ci

al
 R

ep
o

rt

22.  Employee benefits

General 
Fund

Agape 
Fund

Unrestricted Unrestricted Total

$ $ $

2012

Salaries and leave accruals 64,605 289,949 354,554

Central provident fund contributions 7,907 35,490 43,397

Other short-term benefits 13,560 60,858 74,418

86,072 386,297 472,369

2011

Salaries and leave accruals 17,651 364,416 382,067

Central provident fund contributions 2,131 44,000 46,131

Other short-term benefits 3,669 75,736 79,405

23,451 484,152 507,603

23.  Compensation of key management personnel

2012 2011

$ $

Salaries, bonus and other benefits-in-kind 207,047 236,000

Central provident funds contributions 24,762 54,427

231,809 290,427

There are no employees with emoluments above $100,000. The above compensation relates to the top 3 
executives.

24.  Taxation

The Council is exempted from income tax under Section 13(1)(zm) of the Income Tax Act, Cap. 134.
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25.  Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Council’s principal financial instruments comprise cash and cash equivalents. The main purpose of these 
financial instruments is to finance the Council’s operations. The Council has various other financial assets and 
liabilities such as other receivables and other creditors and accruals, which arise directly from its operations.

Due to the nature of the Council’s activities, it has minimal financial risks exposure. The Finance and Investment 
Committee provides oversight of the Council’s overall risk management and it recommends to the Board of the 
Council the overall policy pertaining to the Council’s cash management and investment. The Council’s Directors 
review and agree to policies for managing each of these risks and they are summarised below: 

(a) Interest rate risk

The Council’s exposure to interest rate risk arises primarily from the Council’s cash and cash equivalents.  The 
Council does not place its funds in investment debt securities nor does it use derivative financial instruments 
to hedge its interest rate risk.  

The Council’s policy is to obtain the most favourable interest rates available.

Information relating to the Council’s interest rate exposure is also disclosed in the respective notes to the 
financial statements where applicable.

(b) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Council will encounter difficulty in meeting financial obligations due to 
shortage of funds. The Council’s exposure to liquidity risk arises primarily from mismatches of the maturities 
of financial assets and liabilities.

Analysis of financial instruments by remaining contractual maturities

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Council’s financial assets and liabilities at the balance 
sheet date based on contractual undiscounted repayment obligations:

2012 2011

1 year or less
More than 1 

year 1 year or less
More than 1 

year

$ $ $ $

Financial assets 

Other debtors and 
deposits 47,602 - 9,710 -

Cash and cash 
equivalents 7,566,151 - 11,619,482 -

7,613,753 - 11,629,192 -

Financial liabilities

Hire purchase creditor 3,144 10,218 - -

Creditors and accruals 177,462 - 293,013 -

180,606 10,218 293,013 -

In the management of liquidity risk, the Council monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents 
deemed adequate by the Directors to finance the Council’s operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations 
in cash flows.
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25. Financial risk management objectives and policies (cont’d)

(c) Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Council if a counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet 
its contractual obligations.

The Council’s principal financial instruments comprise cash and cash equivalents and these are placed with 
financial institutions of high credit standing and regulated.

26.  Fair value of financial instruments

The Council has determined that the carrying amounts of financial assets and liabilities are reasonable 
approximation of their fair values as they are mostly short-term in nature. 

The carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in each of their following categories are as follows:

Fair value
through

profit or loss
Loans and 

receivables
Non-financial 

assets Total

$ $ $ $

2012

Assets

Non-current

Property, plant and 
equipment

- - 18,968 18,968

Current

Prepayments - - 14,930 14,930

Other debtors and deposits - 47,602 - 47,602

Investment securities 6,008,869 - - 6,008,869

Cash and cash equivalents - 7,566,151 - 7,566,151

6,008,869 7,613,753 33,898 13,656,520

Amortised cost Total

$ $

Liabilities

Non-current

Hire purchase creditor 8,552 8,552

Current

Deferred income 208,960 208,960

Creditors and accruals 181,761 181,761

399,273 399,273
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Fair value
through

profit or loss
Loans and 

receivables
Non-financial 

assets Total

$ $ $ $

2011

Assets

Non-current

Property, plant and 
equipment

- 9,903 9,903

Current

Prepayments - 13,751 13,751

Other debtors and deposits 9,710 - 9,710

Cash and cash equivalents 11,619,482 - 11,619,482

11,629,192 23,654 11,652,846

Amortised cost Total

$ $

Liabilities

Current

Deferred income 5,500 5,500

Creditors and accruals 294,680 294,680

300,180 300,180

27.  Reserves management

The reserves of the Council comprise the General Fund and CSCC Agape Fund. The Council targets a general 
reserve level of two years, taking into account that the grant making function represents the majority of its 
expenditure, and the lag period between member organisations’ budgetary needs and the inflow from current 
year’s fundraising activities.

28.  Authorisation of financial statements for issue

The financial statements for the financial year ended 30 September 2012 were authorised for issue in accordance 
with a resolution of the Directors on 22 November 2012.

26.  Fair value of financial instruments (cont’d)






